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Atticle 4 of the Benefits Administration Agréement states:

4.1 On or before June 30 of each year, the BCMA will provide to the Government through
the Benefits Committee a written report for the preceding Fiscal Year including:

4.1.1
@
(b)
©

(d)

(®
4.12

()

For each of the CME, the CMPA Rebate Program, the CPRSP, the Pregnancy -
Leave Program and Parental Leave Program:

the total amount expended for benefits and the number of physicians for whom an
entitiement was calculated,; ‘

the total amount of funding received from physicians who are not members of the
BCMA for administrative fees

the number of claims applications received, the number accepted and the number
refused;

the amount of any surplus, including any surplus carried forward from a previous
year;

the total amount of Administrative Costs charged by the BCMA against the
Benefits Plans, with details as to the amounts charged against each such plan

the audited financial statements for each Benefit Plan; and

For the PDI

the financial statements provided by Sun Life (or successor insurance company)
to the BCMA

The exhibit that follows outlines by benefit plan:

- the total amount spent

- the number of eligible physicians

- the administrative fees received from physicians who are not members of
BCMA

- the surplus

- the administrative costs charged by BCMA

At the present time, we do not keep track of the number of claims received, paid or
refused, expect for the Pregnancy Leave Plan.
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BC Medical Association

Benefits Administration Agreement

Reporting Requirements

31-Mar-08

Per Agreement

CME

CMPA

CPRSP

PLP

PDI

Section 4.1.1

a) total amount expended for benefits and the number of physicians for wrom an
entitement was caiculated

Benefits

8,144,930

13,635,188

$ 28,685,697

$ 1,589,373

7,341,905

Number of Physicians

8282

8E80

9611

117

68420

b) totai amount of funding received from physicians who are not members of the
BCMA for administrative fees

198,152

‘289,837

3 154,872

¢) The number of claims applications received, the number accepted and the
number refused

Claims received

127

Number accepted

117

Number refused

10

d) the amount of any surplus, including any surplus carried forward from a previous
year :

2,569,413

2,237,853

$ (97,845)

$

87,248

9,465,026

e) the total amount of Administrative Costs charged by the BCMA against the
Benefits Plans, with details as to the amounts charged against each such Plan

317,756

298,193

$ 383,778

$

64,155

360,144

f) the audited financial statements

Y

Y

Y

Section 4.1.2

a) PDI - the financial statements provided by Sun Life (or successor insurance
company} o BCMA
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The audited financial statements for each plan are included in the report.

In addition to the audited statements, we have included at the end a summary of the year’s
results.
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Grant Thornton

Financial Statements

The Continuing Medical & dycation

March 31, 2009 %
J .
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The Continuing Medical Education Fund

Contents
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GrantThthton

Grant Thomten LLP

Suita 1600, Grant Tharrion Place
333 Seymour Streat

Vancouver, BC

VED 0A4

T (604) 887-27 11
F (604) 6856569
waw.GrantThornton ca

-

d balance tf'ie\yI 'n ended.
O ponsibility is '

c:lalstatc eni based on %?ﬁ
in aceprdance wdth Canadmng e y cce éuchtmg standards.

we'plartand erfor_m btain réasonable assurance _ i
ent. An andit includes examining, l
sjl: in the financial statements. Aq
ed d significant estimates made by
tatement presentation.

Auditors’ report

We copducied our audit
Thete st::dﬁ i

ts presént fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Furd as at 9 ang'the results of its operations and the changes in its
finandial position for the y, 2 ehdefl in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

Vancouver, Canada

July 17, 2009 Chartered accountants

Fudit » Tax« Advisory
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The Continuing Medical Education Fund
Balance Sheet ’

March 31 2009 2008
Assets
Cash $ 2,780,203 $ 10,603,837
investments (Note 8) 10,086,762 -

$ 12,856,9}5” 10,603,837

Z

Liahilities x
Payables and accruals - $ . 2105262\ % ~ 2,078,199
Administration fee payable . 92,300 76,680
Provision for unreported education claims (Note 7) ,100,000 8,440,000

<113,/2/9\?\,§52 10,894,879

/T

Fund balance 2,569,413 8,858
Q\ $ 1238 66\,9\65 $ 10,603,83

N2 4 Y
N

On behalf of the Committee

Commitiee Member

Committee Member

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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The Continuing Medical Education Fund
Statements of Revenue and Expendltures and
Fund Balance

Year Ended March 31 2009 _ 2008
Revenue
Government of the Province of British Columbia - $ 8515000 $ 6,725,000
Interest 458,14 621,746
8,973,140 7,346,746
Expenditures
Physicians’ educational expenditures ¢ 8,144,929 7,035,933
(Decrease) increase in provision for unreported
education claims ' {340,000) 1,257,830
&/?,su 928 éﬁi?,?ss
Administration (Note 5) 347,756 252,80
Excess (deficlency) of revenue over expendltures 5\4'-5_5 $ _(, 1,994322#/)
AN AN
Fund balance, beginning (? \> $ 8,958 6})83;3
Transfer from (to) other b % (Ndte 2) 1,710,000 400,000}
Excess (deficiency) of revenue o xpenditures 850,455 1,199,922)
W
Fund balance, epd-of year $ ?569<1/\ $ 8,958
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
3
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The Continuing Medical Education Fund

Notes to the Fmanmal Statements
March 31, 2009

1, Purpose of the Fund

The Continuing Medical Education Fund (the “Fund”) provides eligible physicians
reimbursement for certain expenses for confinuing medical education.

2. Agreements

The Government of British Columbia, the Medical Services Commis on of British Columbia
and the British Columbia Medical Asscciation ("BCMA) entered new master
agreement known as the Physician Master Agreement (*PMA?) effective Nov
to March 31, 2012

The Benefits Subsidiary Agreement is one of the Physlcle\n laft bstd;ary Agr ents
under the PMA and defines the funding and governance pri iple fort benefit p[an The

Jolnt Benefits Committee is the governing committee for the fo lowing ef t plans:
« -Canadian Medical Protective Assoclat] O/\s

Contributory Professional Retirement avings.Plan

Physicians Disability Insurance Progra

Pregnancy Leave Program \

The Con’unumg Medtcal Education Fund

* 9 0 %

The annual base funding levelof $6 725 for the Kund i i f‘r'h int med for the% \&tp

agreement. Additional funding a 000 was ecewed in the c and is
available to certain of the benéfit p und r the dire f the Jomtgv nefits ittee.

In the current year, additional fu dmg was H cated tot Fund at the tio oft e Joint
Benefits Committee.—Also in the byrre yea h Joint Benefifs-Conimittee 1rected that
$1,710,000 be ftr, t< sferredp (2008: 400 rans erred fro & ag% frofw’other benefit

plan fund surplgses.

ber 1, 2007

3. Summary of sig lf\rzt%cou ting poilci x

Revenue and expenditurgs

Revenue and expenditures aréyecorded u ifig the\aceiual nethod.
Physician's educational expenditures 6)
Physician's educational expenditures represent Simbursement of costs incurred by physicians

for various educational courses, meetings and other education enhancement items.

Physician's educational expenditures are accrued for those claims received and approved by
the Fund prior to its year end.
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The Continuing Medical Education Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2009 R

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued)

Physician's educational expenditures {Continued)

Under the guidelines of the Fund, physicians are permitted to submit glaims for cost
reimbursement after the year end of the Fund for costs incurred prio?g\ e year end.
Physicians have up to a maximum of three years to claim entittements. Entilements not
claimed in those years are forfeited. The entittements expire as follows;

2006 : benefit entittement expires March 31, 2008
2007 benefit entittement expires Mar 1, 2010
2008 benefit entittement expires March 31, 2011

Provision for unreported claims represents an estimate of unreporie “tlaims based ugon the
claims settlement expetience of the Fund.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in ctnf i with Canadian generally accepté
kevesti f
nd

accounting principles requires management to ma Q% %tes and a g@ptions th %ct
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities isclosure of contingent asgels a
liahilities at the date of the ﬁnapcféﬂ”‘s tements and t 2 rep%wamounts of ve uirﬁ
expenditures during the reportjng period. ctual results could-diffepfrom those esfimates.

Financia! instruments

The Fund has classified cash™as hsld-fo —t@daing, investnr'n(ents s/\wto—maturity,

receivables as lo ns/w\d‘seiiv:bles, an e@a%s/s other fingticial Jiabilities

Financial asset<;flas ified, as z\ald-for—tr ﬂng re measu;ed alg;:fl e at each reporting
{he statemen o}\ﬁvezlj expenditure.

period with changgsg in fair vajue included i
Financial instruments &?{ Sm: gas h Id-to-’maturit)?/l@ any receivables and other financial
rtizeg

liabilities are measured cost using-theieffective. interest rate method at each

reporting period with changes in an ortized -cost ificluded in the statement of revenue and
expenditure, g\/m

Investments

Investments consist of bonds which rgmca ified as held-to-maturity and are initially
recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest rate method.
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The Continuing Medical Education Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2008

4. Change in accounting policies
Financial instruments - presentation and disclosure

On April 1, 2008, the Fund adopted the provisions of The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants Handbook Section 3862 Financial Instruments — Dfsciosu?s"a{ld Handbook
Section 3863 Financial Instruments — Presenfation. Section 3862 places,ddditio Iemphasts
on disclosures regarding the risks associated with both recogni eé and nrecogmzed
financial instruments and how these risks are managed. Section 38 establlsixés standards
for presentation of financial instruments and non-financial derivatives and idés additional
guidance with classification of financial instruments between igbilities and B uitynfrom the

perspective of the issuer.

" it is management's opinion that the Fund is not exposed™g si Wn credit or interest iate
risk. v

5. Administration

Yield Year Total

4676\3{ \\5.410 28 $ 10{3?7
The fair value of fb(i\iiﬁﬂ 201 8@ <\ /)) ‘
A
\ L——

Bonds

This amount represents expenses incurred by BC A»@ i@aring theFund.
6. Investments (
Efiective Le sT n 0 008
-2 Years
62 $ '

7. Provision for un%; \dveduc tion claims

These financial staiement contain a prayision fo reported education claims for the
following fiscal years:

08 006 Total

8,015,688 $ 2424312 $ 8,440,000

Provision, March 31, 2008

Enfitlement 12,365,500 - - 12,366,500
Payments (3,152,1862) (2,993,733) {1,899,014) {8,144,929)
Estimated lapsed entittements ) {3,627,341) (607,932) - (4,135,273)
Lapsing of excess provision - - (425,208) {425,298}
Provision, March 31, 2009 $ 5685977 $ 2,414,023 § - % 8,100,000
6
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GrantThornton

Financial Statements

Canadian Medical Prote

Dues Rebate Fund
Match 31, 2009 %
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Canadlan Medical Protective Association
Dues Rebate Fund

Contents

Auditors’ Report
Balance Sheet

L

Statements of Revenue and Expenditurgs ar

Notes to the Einanciat Statoments

B
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Grant Thornton

Auditors’ repott

Grant Thomtoa LLP

Suite 1600, Grant Thomnton Place
333 Seymolr Street

Vancower, BC

V6B DA4

7 (604) 687-2711
F {604) 585-6569
www.Gran(Thomtonca

To the Joint Benefits Committee

Pund as at March 31, 2009-20d the statements fukd b la ce for
the year then ended. esjfuin}\zi\ : oS erment.
Our responsibility 3 s Antia ; audit

We conducted our audit} accordan with Canadiz genera]ly a cept m}ttmg standards,
Those stardasd require we a1 onn an audi ble assurance
whether the finandia] statements ar tenal misgtafed 1t dit includes examining,

on a fast baﬂn\xsuppo amounts and dis cl the ﬁnanclzl statements. An
audit alse,in %s the acchyaiting p}:mclplis cant estimates made by

es
cﬂx e\gﬁ tmg the over: statemiént pteseﬂtauon.

In our opinion, staterncnt‘ res r%lf‘aQ

position of the Fund as ults of its opetations for the yeat then ended

W 1c1 th
in accordance with Canadian g e:% cdf.lccountmg prnciples.

hese ﬁmm tn all material respects, the financial

Vancouver, Canada

May 29, 2009 Chartered accountants’

Ruddt « Tax » Advisory
Grank Thomton LLP. ACmaia1kb~tﬂﬁGﬂWhHﬁ‘?%L5013 00126




Canadian Medical Protective Association
Dues Rebate Fund

Balance Sheet .
March 31 2009 2008

Assets A

Cash $ 247,902 $ 2,980,803
_ ya {

Liabilities \/\

Payables and accruals $ B65,087 113,188

Administration fee payable (Note 5) 144,86 285,560

,009,949 \> 398,748

2,237,853 2,58@

<\ \\3,;47,902 $ 29 0;6/ /
AN S S 7

Fund Balance

On behalf of the Cominitiee D

Committee Member

Committee Member

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Canadian Medical Protective Association
Dues Rebate Fund

Statements of Revenue and Expendltures and
Fund Balance

Year Ended March 31 ' /2009 2008
Revenue
Government of the Province of British Columbia $ (13,417,545 $ 12,500,000
Interest earned ‘ ,17*{ 33 404,487
13 589\7q\ 12,904,467
Expenditures :
Rebates to physicians 43,635,187 4,082,821
Administration (Note 5) 298,194 227/ 82

\ \3 933,381 43‘{085{?/
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures \\ $\ \4 ,102) $/}§

W
Fund balance, beginin/of year 3 88 191
Deficiency of revenue er@nd;t res 10 1 406,136
zﬂi $ 2,582,055

/\_\(

D @*’

Fund bal nd of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Canadian Medical Protective Association |

Dues Rebate Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2008

4. Purpose of the Fund i
The Canadian Medical Protective Association Dues Rebate Fund (the * ") provides rebates
to physicians for a portion of their malpractice liability dues. :

2. Agresments

The Government of British Columbia, the Medical Sepices & ommission of British Columbla
and the British Columbia Medical Association & CMAY entered into new master

agreement known as the Physiclan Master Agreeme&( MA"effective Novémben 1, 2007

fo March 31, 2012.
L

The Benefits Subsidiary Agreement is 0 of the Physié‘lan Madter Subsidiary Agreeme/i
under the PMA and defines the funding r%go{lemance pr?hcipl for the benefi piansl’r The
Joint Benefits Committee is the governin committee for the followiha benefit plans:
+ Canadian Medical Protective Assor&afﬁg{\g
vings

Contributory Professional Retireme 5

» an .
¢ Physicians Disability Insurance Program \f% ’
e Pregnancy Leave rogfak
s The Caniinuing edic{jua tion Fund
The annual funding is thg amseunt equired to\rejmburse ell ibg&/}‘hs't,:l 100% of
? e 1985 CMPA

Canadian Medical Protective, Associatio "CMPA™ membership\due

dues, toa ?xima of $22,00 000\ /—\
\ N ‘
3. Sumn} 0 igni% accou\nﬁ@oiicies M

Revenue and expentditures

Revenue and expendjturss are jecorded using t@accr a) ‘wiethod.

Rebates to physicians

Rebates to physicians represent rnt of a portion of physicians' CMPA fees, the
amount of which is determined by ihe Benefits Subsidiary Agreement. The Fund accrues for
those expenditures which are submifte\d\tg,a d approved by the Fund before year end.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Canadian Medical Protective Association

Dues Rebate Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2009

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

" The Fund has classified cash as held-for-trading. Payables and dccruals,dnd administration
fee payable have been classified as other financial liabilities.
Financial assets classified as held- for~trad1ng are measured at fa l/vgne atweach reporting

period with changes in fa]r value included in the statement of\fevenue and\eﬁa Qe
Other flnancnal liabilittes are measured at amortlzéeco us gg the effective_inteest rate
ﬁwgluded in the statément of

methad at each reporting period with changes in amotdize
revenue and expendifure. \ /

LO

4, Change in accounting policy

Financial instruments - presentation and

On April 1, 2008, the F adop eg the provisions of The ‘€anadian Instifute of red
Accountants Handbook ectio Financiak Instrum iscloslire d\l:iandbook
Section 3863, Financial ins@?ﬁ nisy — Prese féq Sectlor% % additional
emphasis on disciosure\s ing / the nsks octated  with (Both reog nlzed and
unrecognized financial inst
establishes standards for presentatign.of fi

Ka ({ la

and prov;d additi uidanceswith
and eqmt from hepers ectuve of

tis uer
ltis manag t’s pin itthe is not expogt signifieant interest rate risk.

5. Admlmstrat:\ / ({O
This amount represents Bxpenses i cu ed in administering the Fund.

ow thes€ risks are anﬂd Section 3863
n\ﬁlat mstrun?nts-a n ﬁ nc:[aI derivatives
Siﬁf on of finariclakinstrumenté between liabilities
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Financial Statements
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Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan

Contents
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Balance Sﬁeet
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GrantThornton

Auditors’ report

Grant Thomton LLP

Suite 1600, Grant Thorton Place
333 Seymour Street

Vancouver, BC

VBB 0A4

T (604) 6472711
F (604) 6656569
vow GrantThomlon ca

To the Joint Benefits Committee

We have audited the balance sheet of Can ory
Match 31, 2009 and the statements of revegue
then ended. These dacial Statements are
responsibility is to ekpress @Xion on thest fin
We conducted our au m a¢cordancewith Canadian gencralL):} tepted auditing standards.

Those standards requj:e M%; nn an au H btain feaspnable assurance
: whtﬁxm cial stateme ts atefred atenal Sstatemnent, An‘audit includes ‘
ini e su/p

ex tcs asis, evi orting the.amoungs and isclosures in the financial

statethents. o mclude sdessing the ascophting Prindiples used and significant
naggment, as Wcll as evalugﬁﬁ he overall financial statement

presentatio \
In our opinion, these figancial sta ts res y, in all matetial respects, the financial
position of the Plan as at Marc 3 & results of its opetations for the year then

ended in accordance with Can dia ge er y accepted accounting principles.

Vancouver, Canada

May 29, 2009 Chartered accountants

£t Fax s Addsory Page 24
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Contributory Pi‘ofeésional Retirement savings Plan
Balance Sheet

March 31 2008 N\, 2008
Assets . /
Cash : % 2, E%,70 N\, 9,632,015
Investments (Note 6} 5,043;907 -
Due from oiher henefit programs (Note 2} 600,000
/7 961,612 $ &32 45
—\ AN

Liabilities :
Payables and accruals $ 633,144 3

Non-members' dues owing to British Colufpbia Medical
Association (Note 5) , \ 26,313
Provision for unclaimed entitterents (Note 7} \ .5 4001?)0

59,457 \\:\ §
(97,845) 507 430

(Deﬁciency) Fund Balagce Q
$ ,861,81 632,015
. \
@ <<i N v
On behaif of the Commiftee
Committee Member

e

Committee Member

-

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan
Statements of Revenue and Expenditures and

Fund Balance .
Year Ended March 31~ 009 2008
x, 15,000

Revenue
Government of the Province of British Columbia $.~. 26,875,000
Interest earned 589,197 736,221
475964:197 2%&1 221
NS
Expenditures

Entitlements available
Less: lapsed entitlements (net),

2,907,300 31,961,55 O
1621,603 2,145,823

. 30,285,697 29,615,73
. . 383775 / 3657_3)7
30,669,472 “&119,45

(3,205,24_)1$ \(1 068,231)
! %

Contributions to physiciéns
Administralion (Nole 8)

Deficiency of revenue 0 eQ(pres
Fund balance, peginging of year
Transfer frém oth r-pﬂlak( ote 2) 0

5475)  (1,068,231)

6
Deﬁciency})f rev !ﬁ\%xpenditures 2
L
(Deﬁcienqy)w ﬁe}xdb\year A (97,845) $ 2,507,430
£

~ o)
Qﬁ/

_ N N
$ 25 stu\; 2,815,661

0
000 760,000

o

See accompanying notes to the financiat statements.
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Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2008

1. Purpose of the Plan

The Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan (the "Plan")} was astablished to assist
physicians to provide for a registered refirement savings plan ("RRSP") for their retirement.
The intent and purpose of the Plan is to provide for contributions to be made b ,ge govemment

to a fund administered by an Administrative Committee on behalf of phy§ici ns entitied 1o
pariicipate in the Plan. The fund will be used o make contributions on(bgalf of gach eligible
Y
7

physician to & physician's RRSP account.

2. Agreements />

The Government of British Columbia, the Medical Servigés Co ission of British C meifa
and the British Columbia Medical hssociation | (‘BCIMAT) i{fe{re’fi‘ info a new magter

7-agreement known as the Physician Master Agreement (‘P “ctives November 1, 2007
to March 31, 2012.

The Benefits Subsidiary Agreement is one ¢f the Rhysician Master\fu ‘si\ec{iary Agreement O
under the PMA and defines the funding and gevernan rinciples fo b t}vaﬁt plans. The

e
Joint Benefits Committee is the governing com itte@ following bgﬁ@ plans:

_ Canadian Medical Protective Association
Contributory Professiopaﬁézﬁegent Savings
Physicians Disabili%/l'nsura e Program
Pregnancy Leave p gra@

The Continuing Medi ti: fon Fund\
The annual fundipg-! el is $26,8 OOUQX'ddjtiona unding ©

, f.$7,50Q,000wa received in
the current yea%mndis available to cettain © the berefit plans gder\the irection of the Joint
ittes. In fis iti
12010, 1

Benefits Col [ 2008, additional funding wa flocated to the Plan at the
direction of %%Joi \Bi‘ﬁts ommittee™ Effective Apill

CPRSP will incr Keb $25Mmilli x
The Joint Benefits Coram! .e irected that $60

0, @08'\ %60,000) be transferred fo the
CPRSP from other beneﬂt\pla suyhses_ C A ) v

NS
3. Summary ofsigniﬁcantaccountin p’c’ﬂ\ic'ss

L ] L ] *» & ©

annual funding for

Revenue and expenditures

Revenue and expenditures are recorded using the accrual method.

Contributions to physicians

Contributions to physicians represent contributions on behalf of each eligible physiclan to a
physician's registered retirement savings plan account. The contribution is determined using a
formula established by the agreement. Physician entittements are calculated once each
calendar year and paid not ater than March 1.
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Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2009 ’

3. Summary of significant accou nting policies (Continued)

Contributions to physicians (Continued}

Physicians have up to a maximum of three years to claim entitements. titlements not
claimed in those years are forfeited. The entitlements expire as follows!

Entitlement year 2006 penefit entitlement expires arch 1, 2 09

Entitlement year 2007 benefit entitlement expires arch

Entitlemnent year 2008 penefit entitternent expires M\d;{ 01 1

The provision for unclaimed entitiements represents an sttm e of future pay of
entitierents available to physicians. The provision is ne of entiﬂements that are an Q\pa ted

to lapse based upon the claims seftiement history of the Plan.

Use of estimates <

The preparation of financial statements 1n nfo ity with Canadian enerally accepte O

accounting principles requires management mates and 2 suuﬁptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilitie 2% osure of cont_pgent ass s and

jiabilities at the date of the financial statemens\i @ rep %amounts of rev n e a
re ffe .

expenditures during the reporting pe jod. Actual 5uid di om those egti

Financial instruments

The Plan has classifi ed cash @-tra tng, investments as heidg é ur , receivvables
as loans and receivables, and ayables and provision for unclaimed ent:tl ent as other
- financial !|ab1ht|es

Financial asséts an la\bmh c!assn’!ed as 1d—for—trad|ng ar me suted at fair value at

each reportingnperi w1t ch es in faityglde include tat ent of revenue and

expenditure.

Loans and recewab! heid-to-maturity, and }a er ﬁ liabilities are measured at

amortized cost using th effectwe ipterest met d t rrdﬁ( orting period with changes in
1

amortized cost included in e st ment of reven enditure.

"Transaction costs related to held-to-ma rQBtru onis are capitalized and amortized using

the effective interest method.

Investmenis

investments consist of bonds and are classified as held-to-maturity and are initially recorded
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest

method.
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Contributory professional Retirement Savings Plan

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2009

4. Change in accounting policy
Financial instruments - presentation and disclosure

On April 1, 2008, the Plan adopted the provisions of The Canadian Instt:'i/tute\of Chartered
Accountants Handbook Section 3862 Financial Instrumnents — Disclosuzes, and Handbook
Section 3883, Financial Instruments — Presentation.  Section 3862 plac/e§ additional
emphasis on disclosures regarding the risks associated withéth reGognized and

~ unrecognized financial instruments and how these risks are ma ag;a} Se»%m 3863
establishes standards for presentation of financial instrumentis}\asnd nontfinancial derjvatives

and provides additional guidance with classification of financial instruments between liabilities
and equity from the perspective of the issuer. / \>

it is management’s opinion that the Plan is not exposed\to sign'lfpe{;\t\credit of interest'rate

risk. \
5. Non-members dues due to BCMA K\ \
o are not members of BCMA are cH a&\d feato a maximumm of $30 /(*f‘b
S fiose phy and By

Physicians wh

administrative costs. This fee has been coilecteré com. tHose physicians' entitlieme
due to BCMA. /\ /\) & !
2N
6. Investments Q \ \> & \B :
Effectiv Less Than \ 009 2008
Yield 1Ye T2Yedrs Totl Total
. ;704,917 5,%143.30; $ -
- 7

Bonds 5.194% 2:338,980
N S
The fair value of the ondsis $ 050}\235 @
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| Contrlbutory Profess
Notes to the Financia

March 31, 2008

ional Retirement savings Plan
| Statements

7. Provision for unclaimed entitiements

Entitlement Year

ENULCINIERT, b =2

Provision, March 31, 2008

Entitlement
Payments

Estimated lapsed entitlernents
Excess of actual payments
over provision

Lapsed entitliements (net)

Provision, March 34, 2009

2006 " Total

2008 2007 2006 Total

_ g 5783686 § 1018314 $_ 6,800,000
32,907,300 - /32,907,300 '
(24,514,716) _(3.518,610) (1.662,371) (20,685,897

8,392,584 (3 518,610) , (1,652, 4)\\ \121 503
(3,257,660) \257, 60}

. i ;63@57 636

(3,257,660} 057 (2,621,603)

1349K—i26\5076 $—\ L$

7,400,000

8. Administration

This amount represents &xp fses ingurred b
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Grant Thornton

Financial Statements
Pregnancy Leave Progta

March 31, 2009 ~
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Pregnancy Leave Program
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Grant Thornton |

. >
Auditors’ repott
. Grant Thomton LEP
Syite 1600, Grant Thorton Place
333 Seymour Street
Vancouver, BC
el 0A4

T (504) 6872711
F (604) 685-656%
werw GranfThoenton.ca

To the Joint Benefits Committee

We have aundited the balance sheet of th
the statements of revenu d cxpenditm

financial staternents age the re\q"ﬁbﬂity o
{o express an opinied on rE5¢, finhpcial stateryen

agement. \QSP_)/ ility is

1
. UZ?\
We conducted our audita accordarive with Canadf 1 generally ac ﬁ_ﬁia iting standards.
Those standards require that we and perform an audit foreblal s@nable assurance
jal statemehis ate fre terial mis : audit includes

whethét the finan
i isclosutes in the financial

examining, §n 2xest Dagis, evidehge s ;portingth
statements. X&gi;cludes sdessing the a§

gement, as well as e¥alt
presentation O :
In our opinion, thesg fiancial st};m'rﬁ 5 _ert hisly, in all material respects, the financial

g, 20B9-ad the results of its op erations and the changes
eah then epded, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

position of the Program as at
in its financial position for the
accounting principles.

Vancouver, Canada

July 17,2009 Chartered accountants

Pud » Tax+ Advisory Pa

Grat Thorrion LLP, A Ganacdan embet d@*ﬁmiﬂi“r%%;é‘ﬁ%%m 26



o

) Pregnancy Leave Program
Balance Sheet

March 31 2009 2008
Assets
Cash $ 423521 $ 492,707
Due from other benefit plans 400,000
s / a23pir 892707
_ <~ —
N
Liabilities
payables and accruals 336,27 870,618
Fund Balance 87,249
' $ 4423,527 $ 89270
e T—r— -
/ N . [ AT,

%\“@x@

1 s O%@

On behalf of the Committee

Committee Member

-

Committee Member

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Pregnancy Leave Program
statements of Revenue and Expenditures and
Fund Balance

Year Ended March 31 ' 2009 2008
Revente /\
Government of the Province of Bntlsh Columbia 1,300,000 % 1,300,000
Interest / 18,688 25,397
<1,;43,$8L 1,325,397
N
Expenditures
Physicians’ pregnancy benefi t 1,589,373 1,649,496
Administration (Note 5) A, 64,155 60,530

} 853,528 1 710,4)2
Deficiency of revenue over expenditu% \ \(334 840) $ é;zé)
A

Fund balance, beginning of year % R 22 089 $
Transfer from other b/ané;l%( ote 2) 4 0,000

Deficiency of revenue OVer, xp ncilt res (,’5 4}8 (384,629}

Fund balance, end of year $ \ 22,089

See accompanying notes o the financial statements.
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Pregnancy Leave Program

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2009

1. Purpose of the Program

The Pregnancy Leave Program (the "Program”) provides a maximum 17 week benefit for
female physicians while on pregnancy leave.

2. Agreements

The Government of British Columbia, the Medical Services.Commission™of Biitish Columbia
and. the British Columbia Medical Association (JBCMA’p entered intc\a hew master
agreement known as the Physician Master Agree ent (“BMA™) effective Novembeg 1, 2007
to March 31, 2012.

Joint Benefits Commiitiee is the governing comrhiitee for the follow benefit plans:

The Benefits Subsidiary Agreement is one of the Physician M? er Subsidiary Agreem iﬁr
under the PMA and defines the funding overnance p Qgip s for the benefit pians@
f ,

Physicians Disability Insurance Program
Pregnancy Leave Progra
The Continuing Medical Education Fun

« Canadian Medical Protective Ass iaﬁ\n\P
Contributory Professional Retireme tS@s lan Q

o * b

The annual base funding %{; 1,300,000 for the Erogram is gn tif March 31,
nt

i %E%

2010, Additional funding of*$1,500,000~was received in the curr Panany i5 available to
certain of the benafit plans under thwt(}fthe Joint Benefi s‘@;,e mitige. ‘
In the curré ye?rﬂe cgint Bene etg C g;lm_i 4e directed/that $400}000 (2008: $400,000) be
transferre&ﬁo\th s Pr ﬁ \im oth r\be/eﬁt plan fuiﬁ rplyses.

Effective April %«L\t; Program will be discontin aby
Leave Program. \ (3 / 0 %
3. Summary ofsig:%c@éccou m lieiy

Revenue and expenditures

il be replaced by a Parental

Revenue and expenditures are recorded.using the accrual method.

Physicians’ pregnancy benefit

Physicians’ pregnancy benefit repreésents the approved benefit based on the maximum
entittemnent available to the physicians relative to their eligible income level.

The physicians’ pregnancy benefit is accrued for eligible claims incurred prior to year end.
Physicians are able to submit eligible cfaims up to eight weeks subsequent to year end which

are included in the accrual.
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Pregnancy Leave Program

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2009

3. Summary of signiﬁcaht accounting policies (Continued)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Can m erally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates.(ﬁi assa& ptions that affect
the reported amounts. of assets and liabilities and disclosu f contt gent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reporte unt of revenue and
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results d differ fro hose stimates.

The Program has classified cash as heid-fbr—trading, ue ﬁm/%er benefit p>ts loans

and receivables, and payables arid accruals as other financial habmties

Financial assets classified as held for-t@are measure at ir value at each rep r’u
period with changes in fair value included \the statement of re enu and expendifure-

Financial instruments

Leans and receivables and other financial lla htie re easureda amortized Q'ng the

effective interest rate methed—at each rep eriod™with changes Jii a i ‘

included in the statement of revenue.and expen ure /\> \\
f AN ‘

4. Change in accounting Ms

Financial insfruments prese tati \ddis losure

provisiong.of h adian Institute of Chartered

On April 1, h Pro am adopt
Accountants arkoo Settion 3862\ Gihancial Instn f{ta nis —Disclosures, and Handbook
ctio

Section 3863 ial ihstrulments — Presentation \3862/ places additional emphasis
on disclosures ga%&r;gi the\ risks assoclatéd With \bbdih recognized and unrecognized
financial instrume ow these risks azé f1ghagéd. \Gection 3863 establishes standards
for presentation of financial instruments an —ﬂhan jal derivatives and provides additional
guidance with ciasmf ication-of finang al-m ménté between liabilities and equity from the
perspective of the i !ssuer

It is management's opinion that theiProgra s not exposed fo significant interest rate risk.

5. Administration

This amount represents expenses incurred by BCMA In administering the Program.
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FINANCIAL REPORT SUMMARY
LTD Policy Number 59908
From April 1, 2008 to March 31, 2009

Premiums: _
Paid Premium $12,850,001 $0  $12,850,001
Incurred Claims:
Paid Ciaims $8,122,951 $437,044 $8,559,006
Disabled Life Reserve Beginning 30,919,771 - 2,412,573 33,332,344
Ending 29,717,803 2,223,851 31,941,764
Change (1201,868)  ($188,722)  (1,390,590)
IBNR Reserve Beginning 1,755,000 0 1,765,000
Ending 1,827,500 0 1,827,500
Change 172,500 0 172,500
TOTAL INCURRED CLAIMS $7,093,583 $248,322 $7,341 ,905
Expenses & Tax:
Premium Tax $267,000 $0 $257,000
Other Expenses 1,304,831 13,006 1,317,837
TOTAL EXPENSES & TAX $1,561,831 $13,006 $1,574,837
Interest on Reserves & Cash Flow
Initial iBNR Reserves @ 2.06% $36,978 $0 $35,978
PLR (5-Year GIC) 979,175 115,051 $1,094,226
Interest on Cash Flow @ 1.37%
Premium 91,735 - 0 - $91,735
Paid Clairgs {$55,753) {$3,000) {$58,7563)
Premium Tax {$1,922) 0 (31,922)
Expenses ($8,038) ($89) ($9,027)
TOTAL INTEREST $1,040,275 -$111,962 $1,152,237
Plan Year Results: ,
PLAN YEAR SURPLUS/DEFICIT $5,234,862 {$149,366)  $5,085496
Premium Tax Adjustment 106,834 ($3,048) 103,786
Transfer to CFR (227,537) 0 (227,537)
TOTAL SURPLUS $5,114,159 ($152,414) $4,961,745
Transfer to Deposit Fund Account -5,114,159 152,414 -4,961,745
Balance $0 $0 ' $0
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STATEMENT OF CLAIMS FLUCTUATION RESERVE
LTD Policy Number 59898
From April 1, 2008 to March 31, 20089

Balance as at April 1, 2008
interest at one year GIC 2.05%

Transfer from Surplus

Balance as at March 31, 2009

Maximum Required Claims Fluctuation Reserve

25% of Pald Premium

$2,925,000 $0  $2,025,000
59,963 0 50,963
$227,537 $0  $227,537
$3,212,500 $0 3,212,500
$3.212,600 §0 $3,212,500

-1-
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STATEMENT OF DEPOSIT FUND
LTE Policy Number 59998
From April 1, 2008 to March 31, 2009

DEPOSIT FUND ACCOUNT 11

Transfer from Surplus April 1, 2008 $4,440,234 {$5,671) $4,434,563.00

Interest earned from April 1, 2008 - July 10, 2008 22,859.89 22 669,89

Total Refund as of July 10, 2008 $4,467.222.89

Balance as of July 11, 2008 . $0.00

Transfer frormn Surplus April 1, 2009 $5,114,169 {$152,414) $4,061,745
-1- /1472009
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BC Medical Association
Benefit Plans - audited fs
March 31, 2009

Fund Balance - Aprii 1, 2008

Government funding
Interest Income

Benefits

Increase (Decrease) Provision
Management Fees

Sundry Expenses

Excess Rev - Exp

Transfer of funds from SunLife

Transfer of funds to benefit plans

Funding Balance - March 31, 2009

7 PDI Trust
CME CMPA CPRSP FLP funds in BCMA PDI - Sunlife
8,958 2,582,055 2,507,430 22,089 2,641,959 4,457,223
8,515,000 13,417,945 26,875,000 1,300,000 - 12,850,001
458,141 - 171,334 588,197 18,688 114,089 1,152,237
8,973,141 13,589,279 27,464,197 1,318,688 114,099 14,002,238
8,144,930 13,635,188 29,685,687 1,588,373 - 7,341,805
{340,000) - 600,000 - - -
317,756 298,193 383,775 64,155 - 360,144
_ - - - - 1,338,444
8,122,686 13,933,381 30,669,472 1,653,528 - 9,040,493
850,455 (344,102) (3,205,275} (334,840) 114,089 4,961,745
- - - - 4,457,223 {4,457,223)
1,710,000 - 600,000 400,000 {2,710,000) -
2,569,413 2,237,953 (97,845) 87,249 4,503,281 4,861,745
Agenda 3a)
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BENEFITS
ANNUAL REPORT

APRIL 1, 2009 - MARCH 31, 2010

~ September 20,2010
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BRITISH
) _ COLUMBIA .

- , : ' MEDICAL
ASSCCIATION

As per the Behefits Administratioﬁ Agreement

ARTICLE 4- ANNUAL REPORT

On or before June 30 of each year, the BCMA will provide to the Government through
the Benefits Commrittee a written report for the preceding Fiscal Year including:

4.1.1 For each of the CME, the CMPA Rebate Program, the CPRSP, the Pregnancy

(a)

®

(©)

(d).

(©

®

Leave Program and Parental Leave Program:

the total arnount expended for benefits and the number of physicians for whom an
entitlement was calculated; _ :

the total amount of funding received from physicians who are not members of the
BCMA for administrative fees

the number of claims applications received, the number aécepted and the number
refused;

the amount of ény surplus, including any surplus carried forward from a previous
year;

the total amount of Administrative Costs charged by the BCMA against the
Benefits Plans, with details as to the amounts charged against each such plan

the audited financial statements for each Benefit Plan; and

41.2 Forthe PDI

(a)  the financial statements provided by Sun Life (or successor insurance company) to

the BCMA. ) :

As such the report contains the following:

1.

2.

Répofting requirement exhibit that addresses section 4.1.1.
Program Summary
Summary of the year.end results for all the benefit programs.

Draft audited financial statements for CME, CMPA, CPRSP and PLP

PDI :

a. Financial Report summary
b. Statement of Claims Fluctuation Reserve
¢. Statement of Deposit Fund
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BC Medical Association

Benefits Administration Agreement

Reporting Requirements

31-Mar-10

HTH-2013-00126

Per Agreemant CME CMPA CPRSP . PLP PDI

Section 4.1.1

a) total amount expended for benefits and the number of physicians for whom an

entitlement was calculated : : ‘ .
Benefits '$ 8,594,827 | § 10,075327 | $ 33674460 | $ 1,704,161 | $ 8,964,141
Number of Physicians 9358 8699 9657 122 . 6659

b} total amount of funding received from physicians who are rot members of the _

BCMA for administrative fees ' $ 161,549 | § 2718051 % 203,174 - -

c) The number of claims applications reéeived, the number accepted and the

number refused (currently on tracked for PLP)
Claims received - - - 126 -
Number accepted - - - 122 -
Number refused - - - 4 -

d} the amount of any surplus, ifcluding any surplus carried forward from a previous . ) ) .

year : $ 2,027,957 | % 3297045 | § (36,249)| & 22788 % 8,425,394

e) the total amount of Administrative Cbsts charged by the BCMA against the :

Benefits Plans, with details as to the amounts charged against each such Plan $ 317,756 | $ 2082001 % 3B3T775 | $ 64155 | $ 360,144
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BRITISH
COLUMBIA
" MEDICAL
ASSOCIATION hY

Program Summary

Continuing Medical Education Fund (CME)

This fund is designed to assist physicians with educational expenses. A yearly
entitlement is calculated for eligible physicians, which may be deferred for up to
three years. : : -

Canadian Medical Protective Association (CMPA) Rebate

This rebate provides a partial reimbursement of physicians’ medical liability -
. coverage fees. Due to the trend of decreasing CMPA fees, there are certain
practice types that are no longer eligible for the rebate.

Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan (CPRSP)

A dollar for dollar matching benefit with a maximum determined annually. This
benefit has two components: a basic benefit which is available to all eligible
physicians and a supplemental benefit which is available to all eligible physicians
60 and qver. The benefit may be deferred for up to three years. '

Pregnancy Leave Program (PLP)

This program provides a maximum 17 week benefit for female physicians.
Physicians receiving benefits must return to the practice of medicine in British
Columbia for a minimum of 17 weeks following their maternity leave.

Physicians’ Disability Insurance (PDi) ‘
Designed to provide income replacement to physicians who become partially or
completely disabled.
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BC Medical Association
Benefit Programs - Audited FS
March 31,2010

Fund Balance - April 1, 2009

Revenue
Government funding
Sale of Investments
Interest Income

Expenditures
. Benefits

Increase (Decrease) Provision
‘Management Fees
Sundry Expenses .

Excess Rev - Exp

Transfer of funds from SunLife
Transfer of funds to benefit plans
Market value adjustment of investments

Funding Balance - March 31, 2010

_ PDI Trust
CME CMPA CPRSP PLP funds in BCMA PD! - Sun Life
2,569,413 $2,237,953 (97,845) 87,249 4,503,280 4,961,745
8,725,000+ 11,400,000 29,265,000 1,300,000 - 14,000,000
53,661 - 26,830 - - S
425519 32,620 273,989 3,855 16,099 1,085,410
7,204,180 " 11,432,620 29,565,819 1,303,855 16,099 15,085,410
8,594,827 10,075,327 33,674,460 1,704,161 - 8,964,141
275,000 - (1,100,000) - - -
317,756 298,200 383,775 64,155 » 368,680
] - . - - 1,338,940
9,187,583 10,373,527 32,958,235 1,768,316 - 10,671,761
(1,983,403) 1,059,093 (3,392,416) (464,461) 16,099 4,413,649
1,500,000 - 3,498,000 400,000 (4,448,000) (950,000)
(58,053 - (43,988) - - .
2,027,957 3,297,046 (36,249) 22,788 71,379 8,425,394
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Financial Statements of

THE CONTINUING MEDICAL
EDUCATION FUND

Year ended March 31,2010

DRAFT September 8, 2010
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE JOINT BENEFITS COMMITTEE

We have audited the statement of financial position of The Continuing Medical Education Fund (the
“Fund”) as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and mgmﬂcant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material resrpects, the financial position
of the Fund as at March 31, 2010 and the resulis of its operations and its cash flows for the ysar then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles

The prior year comparatives were audited by'another firm of chartered accountants.

Chartered Accountants

Burnaby, Canada
July 30, 2010

. DRAFT September 8, 2010 . " Page 50
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THE CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION FUND

Statement of Financial Position

- March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Assets
Gurrent assets: )
Cash . $ 3,282,302 $ 2,780,203
Short-term investments {note 4} 4,409,420 4,676,434
7,691,722 7,456,637
Long-term investments (note 4) 6,102,178 5,410,328
$ 13,793,900 $ 12,866,965 -
Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable and accrued liahilities $ 3,248,998 $ 2,078,772
"~ Due to BCMA (note 6) 141,945 ) 118,780
Provision for physicians’ educational expenses (note 5) ' 8,375,000 8,100,000
11,765,943 10,297,552
Net assets 2,027,957 2,569,413
TS 13,793,000 § 12,866,065

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Committes:

Committee Member

Committee Member
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THE CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION FUND

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparatwe ﬂgures-for 2009

/4

2010 2009
Revenue: i ‘ '
Government of the Province of British Columbia $ 86,725,000 $ 8,515,000
Gain on sale of investments 53,661 -
Interest income 425,519 458,140
" 7,204,180 8,973,140
Expenses;
Contributions to physicians: _ :
Entitlements (note 5) 12,721,800 12,365,500
Less: lapsed entittements and defi c;ency )
of actual payments over provision (note 5) (3,851,973) (4;560,571)
8,869,827 7,804,929
Administration (note 6) 317,756 317,756 ‘
' 9,187,583. 8,122,685 |
Excess (deficiency)} of revenue over expenses (1,983,403) ' 850,455 |
Net assets, beginning of year 2,569,413 8,958 (
Transfer from other ptans (note 2) 1,500,000 1,71 0,000
Cumulative market value adjustments of investment .
portfolio classified as available-for-sale (58,053) -
Net assets, end of year $ 2,027,957 3 2,569,413

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION FUND

Statement of Cash Flows’

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 ' 2009
Cash provided by {used in):
Operations: V : :
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses : $ (1,983,403) $§ 850455
Gain on sale of investments (53,661) -
Change in provision for physiciang’ educational expenses,
an item not invoiving cash ) 275,000 {340,000}
Change in non-cash operating working capital : 1,193,391 42,673.
(568,673) 553,128
investments:
Net purchase of investments . (429,228) (10,086,752)
Financing: ’ . |
Transfer from Surplus Benefit Plans (note 2) - 1,500,000 1,710,000
Increase (decrease) in cash _ - . 502,099 (7,823,634)
Cash, beginning of year - 2,780,203 10,603,837
Cash, end of year . : $ 3,282,302 $ 2,780,203
Supplementary information on statement of cash flows:
Fair value adjustment on investments $ (58,053) 3 -

- See accompanying notes fo financial statements.

3
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THE CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION FUND

Notes to Financial Statements

© Year ended March 31, 2010

1. Purpose of the Fund:

The Continuing Medical Education Fund {the "Fund”) was established fo provide eligible
physicians with reimbursement for certain expenses related fo continuing medical education.

2. Agreements:

The Government of the Province of British Columbia (the *Government”), the Medical Services
Commission of British Columbia and the British Columbia Medical Association ("BCMA™) entered
into a new master agreement known as the Physician Master Agreement ("PMA"} effective
November 1, 2007 to March 31, 2012.

The Benefits Subsidiary Agreement is one of the Physician Master Subsidiary Agreements under
the PMA and defines the funding and governance principies for the benefit plans. The Joint
Benefits Committee is the governing committee for the following benefit plans:

s Canadian Medical Protective Association
o Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan |
« Physicians Disability Insurance Program'
e Pregnancy Leave Program
. The Continuing Medical Education Fund

The annual base funding level of $6,725,000 for the Fund is maintained for the period of the
agreement. in the -curent year, the Joint Benefits Committee directed that an additional
$1,500,000 (2008 - $1,710,000) be transferred to the Fund from the surplus of other benefit

plans.

3. Significant accounting policies:

(a) Basis of presentatibn:

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for not-for-profit organizations.

{b) Revenue recogmilon

The Fund follows the deferrai method for accounting for contributions. Unrestncted ‘

contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Externally
restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses
are recognized. :

DRAFT September 8, 2010 Page 54 4
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THE CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION FUND

- Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Significant accounting policies {continued):

(c)

Physiclans’ educational expenses:

Physmtans educational expenses represent reimbursement of costs incurred by physicians
for various educational courses, meetings and other education enhancement items.

Physicians’ educational expenses are accrued by the Fund for those claims incurred by
March 31 and received and approved by the Fund.

Under the guidelines of the Fund, physicians are permitted to submit claims for cost
reimbursement after the year end of the Fund for costs incurred prior to the year end.
Physicians have up to a maximum of three years to claim entitlements. Entitlements not
claimed in those years are forfeited. The entitlements expire as follows: '

2007 . benefit entitlement expires March 31, 2010

(d)

(e)

2008 benefit entitlement expires March 31, 2011
2009 . benefit entitlement expires March 31, 2012

Provision for physicians’ educational expenses:

The provision for physicians' educational expenses represents an estimate of future
payments of entitlements available to physicians. The provision is net of entitiements that are
antucupated to Japse based upen the claims setilement history of the Fund.

Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading,
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial asseis or other financial
liabilities. All financial instruments are included on the statement of financial position and are
initially measured at fair market value. Subsequent measurement and recognition of changes
in fair value of financial instruments depend on their initial classification.

The Fund has elected to continue to apply the financial instruments disclosure and
presentation standards in accordance with the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants

- (*CICA") Handbook Section 3861, as permitted for not-for-profit organizatioris.

DRAFT September 8, 2010

The Fund's financial iﬁstruments include cash, investments, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and due to BCMA. The Fund has classified cash as held for trading, investments as
available-for-sale and accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to BCMA as other

financial liabilities.
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THE CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION FUND

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Significant accounting policies {continued):

(€)

()

Financial instruments {continued):

Financial assets and liabilities classified as held for frading are measured at fair value at each
reporting period with changes in fair value included in the statement of operations.

Loans and recelvables, held-to-maturity investments and othef financial liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method at each reporting period with
changes in amortized cost includéd in the statement of operations.

On April 30, 2009, the Fund redeemed a significant portion of its investments that were
previously classified as held-to-maturity before their maturity date, in order to comply with the
Fund's revised investment policy. As a result of these early redemptions, the Fund must now
classify afl such financlal assets as available-for-sale and measure these assets at fair value,
wnth changes in fair value directly-included in net assets.

It Is management's oplmon that the Fund is not exposed to significant interest rate nsk

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of -
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring the
use of management estimates relate to the calculation of the provision for physicians’
educational expenses'and provision for contingencies. Actuat results could differ from those
estimates.

Adoption of new accounting standards:

Effective January 1, 2009, the CICA issued amendments to Handbook Sections 4400,
Financial Staternent Fresentation by Not-for-Profit Organizations, and 4470, Disclosure of .
Allocated Expenses by Not-for-Profit Organizations. The amendments clarify capital asset
recoghition criteria and amortization requires disclosure of general support expenses by not- -
for-profit organizations, and includes the requirement to follow Handbook Section 1540, Cash
Flow Stafements. The adoption of these standards resulted in the presentation of a cash flow
statement in the financial statements of the Fund.
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THE CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION FUND

Notes fo Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Signifiéant accounting policies (continued):

(h}y Future accounting standards: -
Changes in accounting framework:

The Accounting Standards Board has released an exposure draft relating to the future of
financial reporting by not-for-profit organization. The expostre draft proposes that, as of
January 1, 2012, not-for-profit organizations that are not part of the public sector, such as the
Fund, be given the choice between adopting International Financial Reporting Standards or a
new private company accounting framework supplemented by specific not-for-profit
standards. The Fund is in the process of reviewing the poteniial impact of the proposals on
its reporting framework and financial statements. '

Investments:
Effeciive - Lessthan 2010 2009
Yield 1 year 1-2 Years Total Total
Bonds 5.01% $ 4,409,420 $ 6,102,178 $ 10,511,588 § - 10,086,762

Provision for physicians’ educational expenses:

Entittement year ) . 2009 2008 2007 2008 Total
Provisicn, hMarch 31, 2008 3 - 8 . - 3 5,015888 § 2424312 3 8,440,080
Entitlements - - 12,365,500 _— - . 12,365,500
Paymenis - {3,152,182) {2,8583,733) (1,999,014) (8,144,929}

‘Enttletnents anticipated to lapse and
deficiency of actual paymenis

over provision - (3,527,341) (607,832) {425,208) (4,560,571)
Provision, March 31, 2009 - 5,685,977 2,414,023 - 8,100,000
Entitlements 12,721,800 ) - - - 12,721,800
Payments (3,144,572} (2.912,286) (2,537,969) - (8,594,827}

Entitlements anticipated to lapse and
excess (deficiency) of aciual
payments over provision {3,800,819) (175,000} 123,946

(3,851,973)

$ 8,375,000

Provision, March 31, 2010 $§ 5776,308 § 2598681 $ - 3
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THE CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION FUND

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Yéar ended March 31, 2010

6. Related party transactions:

(8) The Government and MSC have entered into a contract with BCMA for the term of the PMA
for BCMA to administer the Fund, the costs of which are to be recaovered from the annual
funding made available to the Fund.

During the year, the Fund paid $317,756 (2009 - $317,756) for BCMA's services.
Included in due to BCMA s $26,480 (2009 - $26,480) relating to these administrative fees.

(b) The contract also provides that BCMA may charge physicians who are not members of
BCMA an administration fee when such non-members apply for the benefits available to
them under the Fund.

As at March 31, 2010, $115,465 (2009 - $92,300) remained payable to BCMA relating to
non-member fees,

7. Capital disclosures:

The Fund receives its ptincipal source of capital thfough contributions. The Fund defines capital
to be net assets. In carrying out its purpose, the Fund regularly distributes its capital through its
activities and administrative services.

The Fund is not subject to any other external capital requirements or restrictions.

8. Compérative figures:

Certain of the prior year figures have been reclasszf ed to conform with the current year's fi nanmal
statement presentatnon
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE JOINT BENEFITS COMMITTEE

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Canadian Medical Protective Association
Dues Rebate Fund (the “Fund’) as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations and changes
in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsihility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. -

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally acce'pfed auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporfing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Fund as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting pri'ncip!eé_ ’

The pfior year comparatives were audited by another firm of chartered accountants.”

Chartered Accountants

Burnaby, Canada
May 28, 2010
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CANADIAN MEDICAL PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION

— DUES REBATE FUND

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009

Assets _
Cash - '$ 3,709,180 $ 3,247,902

. Liabilities and Net Assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilifies $ 371,713 $ 865,087
Due to BCMA (note 4) 40,421 144,862
- 412,134 17,009,949
~ Net assets 3,297,046 2,237,953
$ 3,709,180 $ 3,247,902

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Committes:

Committee Member

Committee Member
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CANADIAN MEDICAL PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION

— DUES REBATE FUND

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009.

) 2010 2009
Revenuye: -

Government of the Province of British Columbia - $11,400,000 $13,417,945
Interest 32,620 171,334

11 ,432,620‘ 13,589,279

' Expenses; o

Rebates to physicians 10,075,527 13,635,187
Administration {note 4(a}) 298,200 298,194

. 10,373,527 13,933,381
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 1,059,093 (344,102)
Net assets, beginning of year © 2,237,953 2,582,055
Net assets, end of year $ 3,297,048 $ 2,237,953

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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CANADIAN MEDICAL PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION
— DUES REBATE FUND '

' Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

Cash, end of year

2010 2009

Cash provided by (used in):
Operations: . _ '

~ Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 1,059,093 $ (344,102)

Change in non-cash operating working capital {597,815) 611,201
. Increase in cash 461,278 267,099
Cash, beginning of year 3,247,902 2,980,803
$ 3,709,180 $ 3,247,802

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CANADIAN MEDICAL PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION
— DUES REBATE FUND

Notes to Financial Statements

- Year ended March 31, 2010

1. Purpose of the Fund:

The Canadian Medical Protective Association Dues Rebate Fund (the "Fund") provndes rebates
to physicians for a portion of their malpractice liability dues.

2. Agreements:

The Government of the Province of British Columbia (the “Government”), the Medical Services
Commission of British Columbia ("MSC”) and the British Columbia Medical Association ("BCMA")
entered into a new master agreement known as the Physician Master Agreement ("PMA")
effective November 1, 2007 to March 31, 2012.

The Beneﬂté Subsidiary Agreement is one of the Physician Master Subsidiary Agreements under
the PMA and defines the funding and governance principles for the benefit plans. The Joint
Benefits Committee is the governing committee for the following benefit plans:

+ Canadian Medical Protective Association

¢ Contributory Professional Retirement Savingé Plan

Physictans Disability insurance Program

L ]

Pregnancy Leave Program

The Continuing Medical Edcation Fund '

The annual funding received is the amount required to reimburse eligible physicians for 100% of
their Canadian Medical Protective Association ("CMPA") membership dues above 1985 CMPA
dues rates to a maximum of $22,000,000,

3. Significant accounting policies:

(a) Basis of presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared by mahagement in accordance with
~ Canadian generally accepted accaunting principles for not-for-profit organizations.

(b) Revenue recognition:

. The Fund follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Unrestricted

- contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured Externally
restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses
are recognized, ‘ \

(c) Rebatesto physiciéns: .

Rebates fo physicians represent reimbursement of a portion of physicians’ CMPA fees, the
amount of which is determined by the Benefits Subsidiary Agreement. The Fund accrues for
those expenses which are submitted to and approved by the Fund before year end.
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CANADIAN MEDICAL PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION
— DUES REBATE FUND

Notes to Financial Staternents (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Significant accounting policies (contiﬁued):-

(d)

{e)

(f)

Use of estimates:

The preparation -of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabllities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the. reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. ' ’

Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading,
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or other financial
liabilities. All financial instruments are included on the statement of financlal position and are
initially measured at fair market value. Subsequent measurement and recognition of changes °
in fair value of financial instruments depend on their initial classification.

The Fund has elected to continue to apply the financial Instrument disclosure and
presentation standards in accordance withy the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
{“CICA”") Handbook Section 3861, as permitted for not-for-profit organizations.

The Fund'é financial instruments include cash, accounts payable and accrued liabifities and
due to BCMA. The Fund has classified cash as held for trading. Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and admimstratlon fee payable have been classified as other fi nancial
[tabilities. ’

Financial assets classified as held for trading are measured at fair value at each reporting -
period with changes in fair value included in the statement of operations.

Other financial Yiabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method at each reporting period with changes in amortized cost included in the statement of

operations.

Adoption.of new accounting standards:

Effective January 1, 2009, the CICA issued amendments to Handbook Sections 4400,
Financial Statement Presentation by Not-for-Profit Organizations, and 4470, Disclosure of
Allocated Expenses by Not-for-Profit Organizations. The amendments clarify capital asset
recognition criteria and amortization fequires disclosure of general support expenses by not-
for-profit organizations, and includes the requirement to follow Handbook Section 1540, Cash
Flow Statements. The adoption of these standards resulted in the presentation of a cash flow
statement in the financial statements of the Fund.

DRAFT - September 8, 2010 Page 655

HTH-2013-00126




CANADIAN MEDICAL PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION
— DUES REBATE FUND

Notes fo Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 81, 2010

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(@

Future abéounting standards:
Changes in accounting framework

The Accountmg Standards Board has released an exposure draft relatlng to the future of

. financial reporting by not-for-profit organization. The exposure draft proposes that, as of

January 1, 2012, not-for-profit organizations that are not part of the public sector, such as the
Fund, be given the choice between adopting International Financial Reporting Standards or a
new private company accounting framework supplemented by specific not-for-profit
standards. The Fund is in the process of reviewing the potential Impact of the proposals on
its reporting franiework and financial statements. '

4. Related party transactions:

(@)

(b)

The Govefnment and MSC have éntered into a contract with BCMA for the term of the PMA
for BCMA to provide administrative services to the Fund, the costs of which are to be
recovered from the annual funding made avaftable to the Fund.

During the vear, the Fund paid $298,200 (2009 - $298,194) for BCMA's services.
Included in the amount due to BCMA is $24,850 (2009 - $24,850} relaling to these
administrative fees.

The contract also provides that BCMA may charge physicians who are not members of
BCMA an administration fee when such non-members apply for the benefits available to
them under the Fund.

As at March 31, 2010, $15,571 (2009 - $144,862) remained payable to BCMA relating to
non-memkber fees.

5. Capital disclosures:

The Fund receives its principal source of capital through contributions. The Fund defines capital
to be net assets. In carrying out its purpose, the Fund regularly distributes its capital through its
activities and administrative services. :

The Fund is not subject to any other external capital requirements or restrictions.

6. Comparative figures:;

Certain of the prior year figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's financial
statement presentation.
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_AUD]TORS' REPORT TO THE JOINT BENEFITS COMMITTEE

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Contributory Professionél Retirement
Savings Plan (the “Plan”) as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations and changes in net
asseis and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial stalements are the responsibility of
the Plan's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. _ '

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An' audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financiat statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

in our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in alt material respects, the financial position
of the Plan as at March 31, 2010 and the resulis of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles

The prior year corﬁparatives were audited by another firm of chartered accountants.

Chartered Accountants

Burnaby, Canada-
May 28, 2010
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B CONTR!BUTORY PROFESSIONAL RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

‘Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Assets
Current assets: ) -
Cash $ 1,262,634 $2,317,705
Short-term investments (note 4) 2,104,370 2,338,980
Due from other benefit programs - 600,000
‘ 3,367,004 5,256,695
Long-term investments (note 4) 3,433,377 2,704,917
$ 6,500,381 $ 7,961,612
Liabilities and Net Deficiency
Accounts payable and accrued liabllltses $ 179,763 $ 601,163
Due to BCMA (note 6) 56,867 - 58,204
Provision for unclaimed ent;tiements {note 5) 6,300,000 7,400,000
6,536,630 8,069,457
Net deficiency (36,249) (97,845)
$ 6,500,381 $ 7,961,612

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Approved on behalf of the Committee:

Committee Member

Committee Member
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'‘CONTRIBUTORY PROFESSIONAL RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Revenue: L ] '
Government of the Province of British Columbia $ 29,265,000 $ 26,875,000
Gain on sale of investments 26,830 -
Interest income 273,889 589,197
29,665,819 27,464,197
Expenées:
Contributions to physicians:
Entitlements (note 5} 34,800,000 32,907,300
Less lapsed entitlements and deficiency of .
actual payments over provision (note 5) (2,225,540) {2,621,603)
32,574,460 - 30,285,697
Administration (note 6(a}) 383,775 383,775
32,958,235 30,669,472
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (3,392,416) {3,205,275)
Net assets (deficiency), beginning of year {97,845) 2,507,430
Transfer from other plans (note 2} 3,498,000 ' 600,000
Cumulative market value adjustments of investment o .
portfolio classified as available-for-sale (43,988) -
Net deficiency, end of year $ (36,249) § (97,845)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CONTRIBUTORY PROFESSIONAL RETIREMENT S-AVINGS‘PLAN

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009 |

2010

2008

Cash provided by (uséd in):

- Operations:
Deficiency of revenue over expenses

$ (3,392,416

$ (3,205,275)

Galn on sale of investments - . (26,830)
Change in provision for unclaimed entitlements, an
itern not involving cash (1,100,000) 600,000
Change in non-cash operating working capital 177,173 (265,128)
- : (4,342,073)- (2,870,403)
Invesiments:

Net purchase of investments (210,998 {5,043,907)
Financing: .

Transfer from Surplus Benefit Plans (note 2) 3,498,000 600,000
Decreass in cash - {1,085,071) (7,314,310)
Cash, beginning of year 2,317,705 9,632,015
Cash, end of year $ 1,262,634 $ 2,317,705
Suppiementary,informatio.n on statement of cash flows: :

Fair value adjustment on investments $ (43,988) 3 -

See accompanying notes fo financial statements.
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CONTRIBUTORY PROFESSIONAL R__ET[REMENT. SAVINGS PLAN

Notes to Financial Statements :

Year ended March 31, 2010

1. Purpose of the plan: '

The Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan (the “Plan”) was established to assist
physicia'ns to provide for a registered retirement savings plan ("RRSP”) for their retirement. The
intent and purpose of the Plan is to provide for contributions to be made by the government to a
fund administered by an Administrative Committee on behalf of physicians entitled to participate

* in the Plan. The Plan will be used to make contributions on behalf of each eligible physician to a
physician's RRSP account. '

2. Agreements:

The Government of Province of British Columbia, the Medical Services Commission of British
Columbia (“MSC") and the British Columbia Medical Association ("BCMA") entered into a new

- master agreement known as the Physician Master Agreement ("PMA") effective November 1,
2007 to March 31, 2012 :

Thé Benefits Subsidiary Agreement is one of the Physicién Master Subsidiary Agreements under
the PMA and defines the funding and governance principles for the benefit plans. The Joint
Benefits Committee is the goverming commitiee for the following benefit plans:

« Canadian Medical Protective Association
- s Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan

s Physicians Disability Insurance Program

e Pregnancy Leave Program . ' \
"+ The Continuing Medical Education Fund -

The annual funding level to be allocated to the benefit plans is $26,875,000. Additional funding of
$2,390,000 was allocated to the Plan by the Joint Benefits Committee in the year ended
March 31, 2010. The Joint Benefits Committee also directed that 53,498,000 (2009 - $600,000)

be transferred to the Plan from the surplus of other benefit plans. :

Effective Aprit 1, 2010, tﬁe annual funding for the Plan will increase by $25 million.

3. Significant accounting policies:
(a) Basis of presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for not-for-profit organizations.

(b) Revenue recognition:

The Plan follows the deferral method for accounting for contributions. Unrestricted
contibutions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the amount fo be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Externally
restricted contributions aré recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses
are recognized. '
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CONTRIBUTORY PROFESSIONAL RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) _ :

Year ended March 31, 20.1 0

3. Significant accounting policies (continued): : ) ' ;

()

Contributions to physicians:

Contributions to physicians represent contributions on behalf of each eligible physician to a

. physician's registered refirement savings plan account. The contribution is determined using

(@)

()

a formula established by the agreement. Physician entitlements are calculated once each
calendar year and paid not later than March 1. )

Physicians have up to a maximum of three :,fears to claim entittements. Entitlements not
claimed in those years are forfeited. The entitiements expire as follows:

Entitlement year 2007 benefit entitlement expires March 1, 2010
Entitlement year 2008 . : benefit entittement expires March 1, 2011
Entitlement year 2009 - benefit entitiement expires March 1, 2012

Provision for unclaimed enfitlernents: -

The provision for unclaimed entitlements represents an estimate of future payments of
entitlements available to physicians. The provision is net of entitiements that are anticipated
to lapse based upon the claims settlement history of the Plan.

Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading,
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or other financial
liabilities. All financial instruments are included on the statement of financial position and are

initiafly measured at fair market value. Subsequent measurement and recognition of changes

in fair value of financial instruments depend on their initial classification. .

The Plan has elected to continue to. apply the financial instrument disclosure and
presentation standards in accordance with the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
{("CICA") Handbook Section 3861, as permitted for not-for-profit organizations.

The Plan’s financial instruments include cash, investments, accounts payable and accrued
liabilitles and due to BCMA. The Pian has classified cash as held for trading, investments as
available-for-sale, due from other benefit programs as loans and receivables, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities and due to BCMA as other financial liabifities.

Financial assets and liabilities classified as held for trading are measured at fair value at each
repeorting period with changes in fair value included in the statement of operations.

Loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method at each reporting period with changes in amortized cost included in

the statement of operations.
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CONTRIBUTORY PROFESSIONAL RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

Notes to Financial Statements {continued) ‘ N

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

{e)

v

(@)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued).

On April 30, 2009, the Plan redeemed a significant portion of its invéstrhents that were ™ -

previously classified as held-to-maturity before their maturity date, in order to comply with the
Plan’s revised investment policy. As a result of these early redemptions, the Plan must now
classify all such financial assets as available-for-sale and measurs these assets at fair value
with changes in fair value diréctly included in net assets.

se of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring
the use of management estimates relate to the calculation of the provision for unclaimed
entitlements and provision for contingencles. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Adoption of new accounting standards:

Effective January 1, 2009, the GICA issued amendments to Handbook Sections 4400,
Financial Statement Presentation by Not-for-Profit Organizations, and 4470, Disclosure of
Allocated Expenses by Not-for-Profit Organizations. The amendments clarify capifal asset
recognition criteria and amortization requires disclosure of general support expenses by not-
for-profit organizations, and includes the requirement to follow Handbcok Section 1540, Cash

Flow Statements. The adoption of these standards resulted in the presentation of a cash flow

statement in the financial statements of the Plan.
Futuré accounting standards:
Changes in accounting framework:

The Accounting Standards E;o'ard has released an exposure draft relating to the future of

- financial reporting by not-for-profit organization. The exposure draft proposes that, as of

January 1, 2012, not-for-profit organizations that are not part of the public sector, stich as the
Plan, be given the choice between adopting International Financial Reporting Standards or a
new private company accounting framework supplemented by specific not-for-profit
standards. The Plan is in the process of reviewing the potential impact of the propasals on its
reporting framework and financial statements. ' ‘
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CONTRIBUTORY PROFESSIONAL RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) ,

Year ended March 31, 2010

4. investments:

Effective  Less than 2010 2009
Yield tyear ~ 1-2 Years Total Total

Bonds 1.09% $2,104,370 § 3,133,377 $ 5237747 $ 5,043,807

5, Provision for unclaimed entitlements:

Entitlement Year 2009 2008 2007 . 2006 Total
Provision; March 31, 2008 9 - 5 . $ s5783p88 § 1018314 3§ 6,600,000
Entitements 32,807,300 - - 32,807,300
Payments - (24,514,716) (3,518,610) (1,652,371 (20,685,6497)

Entitiements _anticipatgd {o lapse
and excess (deficiency) of

actual payments over provision - (3,257,660) -~ 636,057 (2,621,803}
Provision, March 31, 2009 - 5,134,924 2,265,076 . 7,400,000
Entitlements 34,800,000 - - - . 34,800,000
Payments {27,089,842) {4,348,942) (2,235,676) - (33,674,460)
Entittlements anticipated to lapse ; '

and deficiency of actual

payments over provision (2,196‘140) - (29,400) - (2,225,540}
Frovision, March 31, 2010 § 5514018 $ 785982 % - % -5 6,300,000

6. Related party transactions:

(a) The Govermnment and MSC have entered into a contract with BCMA for the term of the PMA
for BCMA to administer the Plan, the costs of which are to be recovered from the annual

funding made available to the Plan.
Duhring the year, the Pian paid $383,775 (2009 - $383,775) for BCMA's Services.

included in the amount due to BCMA is 531,081 (2009 - $31,981) relating to these

administrative fees.

(b) The contract also provides that BCMA may charge physicians ‘who are not members of
bers apply for the benefits available to

BCMA an administration fee when such non-mem
them under the Plan. )

As at March 31, 2010, $24,886 (2009 - $26,313) remained payable to BCMA relating to non-
member fees. :
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CONTRIBUTORY PROFESSIONAL RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

7. Capltal disclosures:

The Plan receives its principal source of capital through contributions. The Plan defines capital to
be net assets. In carrying out its purpose, the Plan regularly distributes its capital through its
activities and administrative services.

The Plan is ‘not subject to any other external capital requirements or restrictions. -

8. Comparative figures:

Certain of the prior year figures have been reclassiﬂéd to conform with the current year's financial
statement presentation.
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Financia! Statements of

PREGNANCY LEAVE PROGRAM

Year ended March 31, 2010
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE JOINT BENEFITS COMMITTEE

We have audited the statement of financial position of the Pregnancy Leave Program {the “Program”)
as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for
_ the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Program's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our. audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, -
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. ‘ ‘

in our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Program as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles

The prior year comparatives were audited by another firm of chartered accountants.

Chartered Accountanis

Burnaby, Canada
June 24, 2010
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PREGNANCY LEAVE PROGRAM

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010

2009
Assets
Cash 351,822 423,527
Accounts receivable 6;698 -
- 358,520 423,527
Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable and accrued fiabilities 330,386 330,932
Due to BCMA (note 4) 5,346 5,346
) 335,732 336,278
“Net assets .22,788 87,249
358,520 423,527

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Committee:

Committee Member

Committee Member

1
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PREGNANCY LEAVE PROGRAM

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Ye_ar ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Revenue:
Government of the Province of British Columbia $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000
Interest - -3,855 18,688
' 1,303,855 - 1,318,688
Expenses: - ,
Physicians’ pregnancy benefit 1,704,161 1,589,373
Administration (note 4) 64,155 64,155
1,768,316 1,653,528
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (464,461) (334,840)
Net assets, beginning of year 87,249 22,089
Transfer from other benefit plans (note 2) 400,000 400,000
$ 22,788 87,249

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PREGNANCY LEAVE PROGRAM

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative ﬁgﬂres for 2009

2010 2008
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations: .
© Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (464,461) $ (334,840)
Change in non-cash operating working capital (7,244) (134,340)
o (471,705) (469,180)
Financing:

Transfer from other benefit plans 400,000 400,000
Decrease in cash (71,705) (69,180) -
Cash, beginning of year 423,527 492,707
Cash, end of year § 351,822 $ 423527

See accompanying notes to financial statements. '

3
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PREGNANCY LEAVE PROGRAM

Notes o Financial Statements

Year e_nded March 31, 2010

1. Operations:
The Pregnancy Leave Program (the "Program") was established to prowde a maxxmum 17-Week
benefit for female physicians while on pregnancy leave.
Agreements: _
The Government of the Province of British Columbia (the "Government®), the Medical Services
Commission of British Columbia and the British Columbia Msdical Association ("BCMA”) entered
into a new master agreemant known as the Physrc;an Master Agreement (“PMA") effectave
November 1, 2007 to March 31, 2012,
The Benefits Subsidiary Agreement is one of the Physician Master Subsidiary Agreements under
the PMA and defines the funding and governance principles for the benefit plans. The Joint
Beneiits Committee is the governing committee for the following benefit plans:
¢ Canadian Medical Protective Association
* Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan
¢ Physicians Disability Insurance Program
s Pregnancy Leave Pro_Qram '
* The Continuing Medical Education Fund
The annual base funding level of $1,300,000 for the Program was to be maintained until
March 31, 2010. "For the period of April 1, 2010 to March 31, 2012, funding will increase to
$4,300,000 per year due to the fact that as of April 1, 2010, the Program will be expanded to a
Parental Leave Program where both male and female physicians can be eligible for the benefit.
In the current year, the Joint Benefits Committee directed that $400,000 {2009: $400,000) be
transferred to the Program from the surplus of other benefit plans. ’
Significant accounting policies:
(a) Basis of presentation:
These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for not-for-profit organizations.
(b) Revenue recognition:
The Program follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the amount can be
reascnably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Externally restricted contributions
are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are recognized.
DRAFT September 8, 2010 4
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PREGNANCY LEAVE PROGRAM

Notes to Financial Statements {continued) -

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Significant accounting policles {continued);

(©

Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading,
held-to-maturity, joans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or other financiat
liabilities. All financlal instruments are Included on the statement of financial position and are
initially measured at fair market value. Subsequent measurement and recognition of changes
in fair value of financial instruments Gepe_nd on thelr initial classification.

The Program has elected fo continue to apply the financial instrument disclosure and
presentation standards in accordance with the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
{“CICA") Handbook Section 3861, as permitted far not-for-profit organizations.

The Program’s financial instruments include cash, accounts recelvable, accounts payable

- and accrued liabilities and due to BCMA. The Program classifies its cash as held for frading

@

(e)

its accounts receivable as loans and receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
and due to BCMA as other financial liabilities. :

All financial assets classified as held for trading are measured at fair value at each reporting
period with changes in fair value included in the statement of operations.

Other financial liabilifies are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
at each reporting period, with changes in the amortized cost included in the statement of

operations.
Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the regorted amounts of assets and fiabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. ' ’

Adoptlon of new accounting standards

Effective January 1, 2009, the CICA issued amendments to Handbook Sections 4400,

Financial Statement Presentation by Not-for-Profit Orgamzatrons, and 4470, Disclosure of
Allocated Expenses by Not-for-Profit Organizations. The amendments clarify capital asset
recognition criteria and amortization requires disclosure of general support expenses by not-
for-profit organizations, and includes the requirement to follow Handbook Section 1540, Cash
Flow Statements. The adoption of these standards resuted i in the presentation of a cash ﬂow

. statement in the financial statements of the Program.
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PREGNANCY LEAVE PROGRAM

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Significant accounting policies {continued):
(f) Future accounting standards:
CHanges In accounting framework:

The Accounting Standards Board has released an exposure draft refating to the future of
financial reporting by not-for-profit organizations. The exposure draft proposes that, as of
January 1, 2012, not-for-profit organizations that are not part of the public sector, such as the
Frogram, be given the choice between adopting International Financial Reporting Standards
or a new private company accounting framework supplemented by specific not- -for-profit
standards. The Program is in the process of reviewing the potential lmpaot of the proposals
on its reporting framework and financial statements.

4, ReIated party transactions:

The Government and MSC has entered into a oontract with BCMA for the term of the PMA for
BCMA to provide administrative services to the Program, the costs of which are to be recovered
from the annual funding made available to the Program.

During the year the Program paid $64,155 (2009 - $64,155) for BCMA's services.

As at March 31, 2010, $5, 346 (2009 - $5, 346) remained payable to BCMA relating to these
administrative fees.

5. Capital disclosure;

The Program receives its principal source of capital through contributions. The Program defines
capital to be net assets. In carrying out its purpose, the Program reguiarly distributes its capital
through its activities and administrative services.

The Program is not subject to any other external capital requirements or restrictions.

6. Comparative figures:

Certain of the prior year fi gures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's financial
statement presentation.
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FINANCIAL REPORT SUMMARY
LTD Policy Number 59998
From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010

Premiums: -
Paid Premium $14,000,004 $0 $14,000,004
Incurred Claims; )
Paid Claims 7,859,571 416,768 8,276,339
Disabled Life Reserve ~ Beginning 28,717,803 2,223,851 31,941,754
Ending 30,441,790 2,015,267 32,457,057
Change 723,887 {208,684) 515,303
IBNR Reserve Beginning 1,827,500 0 1,827,500
Ending 2,100,001 0 2,100,001
Change 172,501 0 172,601
TOTAL INCURRED CLAIMS $8,755,959 $208,184 $8,964,143
Expenses & Tax:
Premium Tax 280,000 0 280,000
Other Expenses 1,334,512 11,889 1,348,401
TOTAL EXPENSES & TAX $1,614,512 $11.889 $1,626,401
Interest on Reserves & Cash Flow
Initial IBNR Reserves @ 0.5% 9,638 ] 9,638
DLR (5-Year GIC) 947,985 116,865 1,064,850
interest on Cash Flow @ 0%
Premium 0 0 0
‘Paid Claims 0 0 4]
Premium Tax 0 0 o
Expenses 0 a G
TOTAL INTEREST $957,623 $116,8656 - $1,074,488
Planr Year Results:
PLAN YEAR SURPLUS/DEFICIT $4,587,156 {$103,208)  $4,483,948
Prernium Tax Adjustment $93,615 ($2,106) $91,509
Transfer to CFR {$271,438) $0 {$271,438)
TOTAL SURPLUS $4,409,333 ($105,314)  $4,304,019
- Transfer to Deposit Fund Account {$4,409,333) $105,314  ($4,304,019)
Balance $0 $0 30

- -
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STATEMENT OF CLAIMS FLUCTUATION RESERVE
LTD Policy Number 538998
From April 1, 2009-to March 31, 2010

Balance as at April 1, 2009 - $3,212,500 $0 $3,212,500

Interest at one year GIC 0.5% $16,063 %0 $16,083
Transfer from Surplus ‘ $271,438 30 $271,438
Balance as at March 31, 2010 $3,500,001 30 $3,500,001

Maximum Required Claims Fluctuation Reserve
25% of Paid Premium . $3,500,001 $0  $3,500,001

- : W72010
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STATEMENT OF DEPOSIT FUND
LTD Policy Number 53998
From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010

DEPOSIT FUND ACCQUNT 11

Transfer from Surplus April 1, 2008 $5,114,159 {3152,414) $4,961,745

Interest earned from May 20, 2009 - March 24, 2010 $47.624.73 ($1,419.33) $46,205.40
Total as of March 24, 2010 $5,161,784 {3$153,833) $5,007,950

Refund to BCMA ' ($950,000) ($950,000)
Balance as of March 24, 2010 $4,211,784 {$153,833) $4,057,950

Interest earned from March 25 - March 31, 2010 $888.51 (332.45) $856.06

Total as of March 31, 2010 $4,212,672 ($153,8é6) $4,058,808

DEPOSIT FUND ACCOUNT 1

Transfer from Surplus Aprit 1, 2010 $4,409,333 ($105,314) $4,304,019

- w010
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BENEFITS
ANNUAL REPORT

" APRIL 1, 2010 - MARCH 31, 2011

September 21, 2011
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BRITISH
COLUMBIA
MEDICAL
ASSOCIATION

As per the Benefits Administration A'greement

ARTICLE 4- ANNUAL REPORT

On or before June 30 of each year, the BCMA will provide to the Government through
the Benefits Committee a written report for the preceding Fiscal Year including:

4.1.1 For each of the CME, the CMPA Rebate Program, the CPRSP, the Pregnancy
Leave Program and Parental Leave Program:

(a)  the total amount expended for benefits and the number of physmlans for whom an
entitlement was calculated;

(b)  the total amount of funding received from physicians who are not members of the
. BCMA for administrative fees

{¢}  the number of claims applications received, the number accapted and the number
refused;

(d)  the amount of any surplus, including any surples carried forward from a previous
year; : :

(e}  the fotal amount of Administrative Costs charged by the BCMA against the
Benefits Plans, with details as to the amounts charged against each such plan

H the audited financial staterments for each Benefit Plan; and

4.1.2 For the PDI

(a)  the financial statements provided by Sun Life (or successor msurance company) to
the BCMA.

As such the report. contains the following:
1. Benefit programs summary
2. Reporting requirement exhibit that addresses sect.ion 4.11.
3. Summary of the year end results fér all the benefit programs.

4. Draft combined audited statements for CME, CMPA, CPRSP & PLP

5. PDI
a. Financial Report summary
b. Statement of Claims Fluctuation Reserve
c. Statement of Deposit Fund

Page 89
HTH-2013-00126




'BRITISH
COLUMBIA
MEDICAL
ASSOCIATION bRl

Program Summary

Continuing Medical Education Fund (CME) -

This fund is designed to assist physicians with educational expenses. A yearly
entittement is calculated for eligible physicians, which may be deferred for up to
three years. - Effective with the 2011/12 benefit, there will no longer be a deferral.
All eligible physicians will be paid their benefit annually, based on confirmation by
the College of Physicians and Surgeons of BC of their revalidation.

Canadian Medical Protective Association (CMPA) Rebate
This rebate provides a partial reimbursement of physicians’ medical lability
coverage fees.

Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan (CPRSP)

This benefit has two components; a basic benefit, which is a dollar for dollar
matching arrangement and is available to all eligible physicians; and, a length of
service benefit which is based on the number of years a physician has practiced
in British Columbia. The benefit's maximum entitlement is calculated annually
and may be deferred for up to three years.

Parental Leave Program (PLP)

This program provides a maximum 17 week benefit for physicians. Physicians
receiving benefits must return to the practice of medicine in British Columbia for a
minimum of 17 weeks following their parental leave.

Physicians’ Disability Insurance (PDI)
Designed to provide income replacement to pﬂySICIanS who become partially or

completely disabled.
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BC Medical Association

Benefits Administration Agreement

Reporting Requirements

31-Mar-11
Per Agreement CME CMPA CPRSP PLP PDI
Section 4.1.1 b
a) total amount expended for benefits and the number of physicians for whom an
entittement was calculated
Benefits n $ 10,077,268 13,847,236 | $ 51,391,344 | $ 3,161,566 | $ 8,541,491
Number of Physicians ~# C\e' & Ane oot fec. AL of 9,714 9,000 10,085 227 8,741
. oo Pe WY ¢ I ik, :
b) total amount of funding received from physicians who are not members of the
BCMA for administrative fees $ 229,303 S 2742711 % 528,329 - -
¢} The number of claims applications received, the number accepted and the
number refused (currently on tracked for PLP)
Claims received - - - 242 -
Number accepted - - - 227 -
Number refused - - - 15 -
d) the amount of any surplus, including ary surplus carried forward from a previous
year $ 3,604,615 1942945 [ $  3375511% 1845717 | $ 8,673,862
e} the total amount of Administrative Costs charged by the BCMA against the .
Benefits Plans, with details as to the amounts charged against each such Plan " § 332,955 3131108 496125 | % 137812 | $ 360,000
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BC Medical Association

Benefit Programs - Audited FS

~ March 31, 2011

Fund Balance - Aprif 1, 2040

Revenue
Government funding
Interest Income

L.oss on maturity of investments

Expenditures

Benefits -

Increase {Decrease) Provision
Management Fees

Sundry Expenses

Excess Rev - Exp

Transfer of funds from SunLife
Transfer of funds to benefit plans

Market value adjustment of investments

Funding Balance - March 31, 2011

PDI Trust
CME . CMPA CPRSP PLP funds in BCMA PDI - Sun Life
2,086,010 3,297,046 7,742 22,788 71,379 8,415,136
7,625,000 12,750,000 51,875,000 4,900,000 578,773 14,000,000
455,019 58,267 512,159 22,329 3,500 1,079,242
(106,097) ' - (49,756) - - -
7,973,922 12,806,267 52,337,403 4,922 329 582,273 15,079,242
10,152,268 13,847,236 46,191,345 3,161,566 - 9,144,438
(75,000) - 5,200,000 - - -
332,955 313,110 496,125 137,812 . - 360,000
82 22 39 22 - 1,252,255
10,410,305 14,160,368 51,887,509 3,299,400 - 10,756,743
(2,436,383) (1,354,101} 449,894 1,622,929 582,273 4,322,499
- - - - 4,063,773 {4,063,773)
4,063,773 - - - (4,083,773) -
(108,785) {120,085)
3,604,615 1,942,945 337,551 1,645,717 653,652 8,673,862
V v/ v v '
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Financial Information of

BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Year ended March 31, 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of the Joint Benefits Commitiee

We have audited the accompanying combined financial information of the Joint Benefits Committee’s
Benefit Programs, including the Continuing Medical Education Fund, Canadian Medical Protective
Association Dues Rebate Fund, Contributory.Professional Retirement Savings Plan and Parental
“Leave Program, which comprises the combined statement of financial position as at March 31, 2011,
the combined statement of operaticns, changes in net assets and cash fiows for the year then ended,
and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. This combined financial information has been prepared by management in accordance
with the basis of accounting described in Note 3 to the combined financial information. ‘

Management’é Responsibility for the Combined Financial Information

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial
information in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 3 to the combined financial
information; this includes determining that the basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the combined financial information in the circumstances and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of combined financial information -
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Audifors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the combined financial information based on our audit.
Wa conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit fo obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial information is free from material.

misstatement.

An audif involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the combined financial information. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatemnent of the combined financial information, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal contral relevant to the
entity's preparation of the combined financial information in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as.
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the combined financial information.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

DRAFT - September 2, 2011
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Opinion
in our opinion, the combined financial information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2011 is
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 3 to

the combined financial information.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 3 to the combined financial information

which describes the basis of accounting. The combined financial information is prepared to assist the
Benefit Programs to meet the financial reporting requirements of the Joint Benefits Commiittee. As a
result, the combined financial information may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is

intended solely for the Joint Benefit Committee and should not be used by parties other than the Joint '

Benefits Committee.

- Chartered Acc:ounténts
September 21, 2011

Burnaby, Canada
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010

Canadian )
Medical Contributory
The Continuing Protective Professional |
Medical Association Retirement Parental
Education Dues Savings Leave
Fund Rebate Fund Plan Program 2011 2010
{("CME") {"CMPA"M ("CPRSP") {"PLP") Total Total
Assets '
Current a\_ssets:
Cash 5,876,387 2,536,510 $ 7,210,797 $ 2,476,661 18,100,355 8,605,838
Short-term investments (note 4) 6,182,638 - 1,659,009 - 7,841,737 5,513,790
Accounts recejvable - - - - - 6,698
12,059,025 2,538,510 8,869,808 2,478,661 25,942 082 15,126,426
Long-term investments (note 4) 4 553,195 - 3,680,158 - B,233,353 8,235,555
16,512,220 2,536,510 12,550,054 $ 2,476,661 34,175,445 24,361,981
Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,261,842 530,248 629,151 $§ 819,277 6,249,519 4,130,860
Due to BCMA (note 7) 134,536 54,316 .83,352 11,667 283,871 244,579
Deferred revenue 311,227 - ' - - 311,227 -
Pravision for physicians' unclaimed ‘ _
entitlements {notes 5 and 6) 8,300,000 - 11,500,000 - 19,800,000 14,675,000
13,007 605 593,565 12,212,503 830,944 26,644,817 . 19,050,439
Net assets 3,604,615 1,842,945 337,551 1,645,717 7,530,828 5,311,542
16,612,220 2,536,510 12,550,054 - $ 2,476,661 34,175,445 24,361,981
See accompanying notes to financial information.
On behalf of the Commitiee:
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Statement of Operations | ' ) 7 .

Year ended March 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010

2011 2010

CME CNPA CPRSP PLP Total - Total

Revenue; .
Government of the Province of

British Columbia $ 7625000 3§ 12,750,000 $ 51,875,000 $ 4,900,000 § 77,150,000 $ 48,690,000

Gain (loss) on maturity of investments (106,097} - (49,756) - - (155,853) 80,491
interest income 454,937 56,245 512,119 22,307 1,045,608 735,983
7,873,840 12,806,245 52,337,363 4,922,307 78,038,755 49 506,474
Expenses:
Contributions to physicians: . ) .
Entitlements {notes 5 and 6) 14,052,750 13,847,236 54,149,949 3,161,568 85,211,501 59,301,288
l.ess: lapsed entitements and
deficiency of actual payments i
over provision (notes 5 and 6) (3,875,482} - (2,758,805) - - (6,734,087) (6,077,513)
- - 10,077,268 13,847,236 51,391,344 3,161,566 78,477,414 53,223,775
Administration {note 7) 332,955 313,110 496,125 137,812 1,280,002 1,063,886
10,410,223 14,160,346 51,887,469 3,289 378 79,757,416 54,287 661
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
OVEl EXPENSES (2,436,383) (1,354,101) 449,894 1,622,828 (1,717,661} (4,781,187)
Net assets, beginning of year excluding
market value adjustments of investment -
porticlio classified as available-for-sale 2,088,010 3,297,046 7,742 22,788 5,413,586 4,796,770
Transfer from other benefit plans 4,063,773 - - - 4,083,773 5,388,000
Cumulative market value adjustments
of investment portfolio classified as .
available-for-sale (note 4(b)) (108,785) - {120,085) “ {228,870) (102,041}
Net assets, end of year 3 36048615 $ 1,942,945 § 337,551 § 1645717 & 7,530,828 $ 5,311,642

See accompanying notes to financial information.
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010

. 201 2010
CME CMPA CPRSP PLP Total Total
Cash provided by (used in):
Ovperations:

Excess (deficiency) of revenue .

Over expenses $ (2,436,383) § (1,354,101) § 449,894 $ 1,622,929 $ (1,717,661} $ (4,781,187)

ltems nof involving cash; ,

Loss (gain) on maturity of investments 106,097 - 48,756 - 155,853 (80,491)
Change in provision for physicians' .
unclaimed entitiernents (75,000) - 5,200,000 - 5,125,000 (825,000)
Change in non-cash operating working capitai 1,316,662 181,431 475,873 501,910 2475878 765,505
(1,088,624) {1,172,670) 6,175,523 2,124,839 6,038,068 (4,921,173)
Investments:

Net purchase of investments (381,084) - (227,360) - (608,424) (640,226)
Financing:

Transfer from other benefit plans 4,063,773 - - - 4,063,773 5,398,000
Increase (decrea.se) in cash 2,594,085 {1,172,670) 5,948,163 2,124,839 9,494,417 (163,399)
Cash, beginning of year 3,282,302 3,709,180 1,262,634 351,822 8,605,938 8,769,337 :
Cash, end of year $ 5876387 § 2536510 $ 7,210,797 $ 2476661 § 18,100,355 § B,B05938
Supplementary information:

Fair value adjustment on investments -5 38,133 § - 3 16,128 & - 3 54,261 % (102,041)

See accompanying notes to financial information.
DRAFT - September 2, 2611 3
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BENEFIT PROGRANIS

Notes to Financial Information

Year ended March 31, 2011

1. Purpose of the benefit programs:

The Continuing Medical Education Fund (the “CME’) was estabhshed to provide eligible
physmlans with reimbursement for certain expenses related to continuing medical education.

The Canadian Medical Protective Association Dues Rebate Fund (the “CMPA”) provides rebates
to physicians for a portion of their malpractice liability dues.

The Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Flan (the "CPRSP") was established to assist
physicians to provide for a registered retirement savings plan ("RRSP") for their retirement The
CPRSP will be used to make contnbutlons on behalf of each eligible physician to a physician's
RRSP account.

The Parental Leave Program (the "PLP") is an expansion of the prior year's Pregnancy Leave
Program, and was established to provide a maximum 17-week benefit for male and female
physicians while on parental leave.

The combined financial information excludes the financial information of the Physicians Disability
insurance Prograrn (hote 3).

2. Agreements:

The Government of the Province of British Columbia {the “Government’), the Medical Services
Commission of British Columbia and the British Columbia Medical Association ("BCMA") entered
into a master agreement known as the Physician Master Agreement ("PMA"} effective November 1,
2007 to March 31, 2012. Future operations of the Benefit Programs are reliant on renewatl of the
PMA. Negotiations are currently underway between the parties to the PMA to reach a new

agreement.

The Benefits Subsidiary Agreement is one of the Physician Master Subsidiary Agreements under
the PMA and is intended to address those matters of unique interest and applicability to general
practitioners. ' ‘

The Joint Benefits Committee (“JBC") is the governing committee for the fotlowmg benefit plans:
e The Continuing Medical Education Fund (CME")

» Canadian Medical Protective Association Dues Rebate Fund ("CMPA”)

» Contributory Professionat Retirement Savings Plan {"CPRSP")

‘« Parental Leave Program ("PLP?)

« Physicians Disability Insurance Program ("PDI")
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Information {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2011

3. Significant accounting policies:

(@)

(b)

Basis of presentation:

The financial information has been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles, except that it excludes the financial information of
the Physicians Disability Insurance Program, a Program also under the control of the JBC.

Revenue recognition:

The Benefit Programs follow the deferral method for accounting for contributions. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Externally

restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in' which the related expenses

are recorded, or the restrictions met.

Funding is recognized as revenue once allocated by the JBC. Funding received that has
heen previously recognized as revenue by any Program under the control of the JBC, is
recorded as a direct increase in net assets. -

Contributions to physicians:
iy CME:
Contributions fo physicians represent reimbursement of costs incurred by physicians for

various educafional courses, meetings and other education enhancement items.

These contributions are accrued by the CME for those claims incurred by March 31 and
received and approved by the CME,

‘Under the guidelines of the CME, physicians are permitted fo submit claims for cost
reimbursement after the year end of the GME for costs incurred prior te the year end.
Physicians have up to a maximum of three years to claim entittements. Entitlements not
claimed in those years are forfeited. The entitlements expire as follows:

Entitiernent year 2008 benefit entittement expired March 31, 2011
Entitlement year 2009 benefit entitlement expires March 31, 2012
Entitlement year 2010 benefit entitlernent expires March 31, 2013
DRAFT - September 2, 2011 5
. Page 100

HTH-2013-00126




BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Information (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2011

3. Significant accounting policies {continued):

(c) Contributions to physicians (continued):
(i) CMPA:
Contributions to physicians represent reimbursement of a portion of physicianfs"Canadién
Medical Protective Association fees, the amount of which is determined by the Benefits
Subsidiary Agreement. The annual funding received for the CMPA is the amount required

to reimburse eligible physicians for 100% of their Canadian Medical Protective Association
membership dues above 1985 dues rates to a maximum of $22,000,000.

(i} CPRSP:

Contributions to physicians represent contributions on behalf of each eligible physician to a
physician's registered retirement-savings plan account. The confribution is determined
using a formula established by the agreement. Physician entitiements are calculated once
each calendar year and paid not fater than March 1.

Physicians have up to a maximum of three years to claim entitlements. Entittements not
claimed in those years are forfeited. The entitiements expire as follows:

Enfitlement year 2008 _ benefit entitiernent expired March 31, 2011

Entitlement year 2009 . benefit entilement expires March 31, 2012

Entitlement year 2010 benefit entittement expires March 31, 2013
(iv) PLP:

Contributions to physicians represent benefits paid to physicians when on parental leave,
based on the amount the physician has billed fo the Medical Services Plan, to a

maximum of 17 weeks and $1,000 per week.
‘(d) Provisions for unclaimed entitlements (CME and CPRSPY):

The provisions for physicians for unclaimed entilements represent an estimate of future
payments of entitiements available to physicians. The provisions are net of entittements that are
anticipated fo fapse based upon the claims settlement history of the CME and CPRSP.
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial information {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2011

.3, Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e) Financial instruments:

U]

Financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held for tradlng,
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, available-for-sale fi nancial assets or-other financial
liabilities. All financial instruments are included on the statement of financial position and are
initially measured at.fair market value. Subsequent measurement and recognition of changes in
fair value of financial instruments depend on their initial classification.

The Benefit Programs have elected to continue to apply the financial instruments disclosure
and presentation standards in accordance with the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
{(“CICA™ Handbook Section 3861, as permitted for not-for-profit organizations.

Financial assets and liabilities classified as held for trading are measured at fair value at each
reporting period with changes in fair value included in the statement of operations. Financial
assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value, with unrealized changes in

fair value recorded directly in net assets.

Loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are measured at amorﬁzed cost using the
effective interest method at each reporting period with changes in amortized cost inciuded in the

statement of operations.

The Benefit Programs’ financlal instruments include cash, investments, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to BCMA. The Benefit Programs have
classified cash as held for trading, investments as available-for-sale, accounts receivable as
loans and receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to BCMA as other

financial liabilities.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial information requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and fiabilies and disclosure of
confingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial information and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring the
use of management estimates relate to the calculation of the provisions for physicians’
unclaimed entittements and provision for contingencies. Actual results could differ from those

estimaies.
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' BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Information (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2011

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(9) Future accounting standards:

Changes in accounting framework:

In December 2010 the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) in conjunction
with the Accounting Standards Board ("AcSB”) issued Part Ill — Accounting Standards for Not-
for-Profit Organizations (“Part [IIy of the CICA Handbook. Part lil is effective for fiscal years
commencing on or after January 1, 2012 and provides Canadian private sector not-for-profit
organizations with a new financial reporting framework. The Benefit Programs have the option
to apply International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS%) or the newly approved

accounting standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations.

The Benefi t Programs have elected to adopt the new accounting standards for Not-for-Profit
Organizations for their fiscal period ended March 31, 2013, except the fi nancial information
will continue to be prepared on a combined basis of accounting.

The Benefit Programs are evaluating the impact of adopting these new accounting standards.

4. Investments:

{a) Investments are comprised of bonds as follows:

CME CPRSP 2011 2010
Effective yield 6.14% | 7.82%
Short~térm investments {less than 1 year) $ 6,828638 § 1,659,089 § 7,841,737 3 6,513,790°
Long-term investments (1 - 2 years} 4,563,195 3,680,158 8,233,353 9,235,555
Total ‘ . § 10,735,833 3 5,339,257 3 16,075,060 § 15,749,345

(by The cumulative market value adjustments of investments recorded directly against nef assets
is summarized as follows:

CME CPRSP 2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ (68,053) § (43,888) & {102,041) § -
Previously unrealized loss transferred
ta net income during the year 38,133 16,128 54,261 -
Net change to unrealized loss (88,865) (92,225) (181,090} (102,041)
Balance, end of year $ {108,785) § (120,085) $ (228,870) $ (102,041}
DRAFT - September 2, 2011 8

Page 103
HTH-2013-00126




BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Information (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2011

5. Provision for unclaimed entitlements (CME):

Entitiement year 2010 2009 2008 2007 Total
Provision, March 31, 2009 $ - % . § 5685977 % 2414023 $ 8,100,000
Entitlements - 12,721,800 ' - - 12,721,800
Payments - (3,144,572) (2.912,286) (2,537,959} (8,594,827)
Entilements anticipated to fapse and ’ N

deficlency of actual payments

over provision - (3.800,919) (175,000) 123,346 (3,851,973}
Provision, March 31, 2010 ‘ - 5,776,309 2,598,601 | - 8,375,000
Entitlements 14,052,750 ) 14,052,750
Payments o (3.852,807)  (3A457,70%) (2,841,682) Co- (10,152,268}
Entitiements anticipated to Japse and

excess (deficiency) of actual

payments over provision (4,218,453} - - 242,971 - (3,875,482}
Provision, March 31, 2011 $ 5,981,400 % 2318600 3% - 8 - § 8,300,000

6. Provision for unclaimed entitlements (CPRSP):

The provision for unclaimed entitlements consist of the basic retirement saving plan ("RSP")
benefits provided to physicians and effective for the 201 0/11 fiscal year, CPRSP offered a RSP
contribution based on the length of service provided by a physician in British Columbia. The
following is the provision for unclaimed entitliements related to these benefits:

Entitlement Year 2019 2009 2008 2007 Total
Provision, March 31, 2009 $ - 3 - & 5,434,924 $ 2265076 $ 7,400,000
Enfilements - 34,800,000 - . - 34,800,000
Payments - (27,089,842) {4,348,942) (2,235,6876) (33,674,460)

Entiflements anticipated fo lapse
and excess (deficiency) of

actual payments over provision - {2,196,140) - (29,4@0) (2,225,540)
Provision, March 31, 2010 - 5,514,018 785,982 - 6,300,000
Entitlements 54,149,949 - - - 54,149,949
Payments {41,518,210) (3,058,002) (1,615,132} - (46,191,344)
Entitlements anticipated to [apse '

and deficiency of actual

payments over provision : (3,587,755} - 829,150 - (2,758,605)
Provision, March 31, 2011 $ 90439084 § 2456018 § - % - § 11,500,000
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Information {continued})

Year ended March 31, 2011

7. Related party transactions: i

(a) The Govemment and MSC have entered info a contract-with BCMA for the term of the PMA for
BCMA to administer the Benefit Programs, the costs of which are to be recovered from the annual

funding made available to the Benefits Programs.

During the year, the Benefit Programs paid the following for BCMA's services:

CME CMPA CPRSF PLP 2011 2010

Administration Expense $ 332,955 § 313,110 $ 496,125 $ 137.812 § 1,280,002 § 1,063,886

As at March 31, 2011, the following remained payable to BCMA relating to these administrative
fees: ‘ _ _ ,

CME CMPA CPRSP PLP 2011 2010

Administration Fees Payable $ 28,186 § 28,507 § 42,000 $ 11,687 § 108,360 § 88,658 .

(b) The contract also provides that BCMA may charge physicians who are not members of BCMA an
administration fee when such non-members apply for the benefits available to them under the

Benefit Programs.

As at March 31, 2011, the following remained payable to BCMA relating to non-member fees:
CME CMPA  CPRSP PLP 2011 2010

Non-Member Fees Payable  $ 106,350 § 27,808 § 41,352 § - § 175511 § 155921

8. Unallocated funding:

As at March 31, 2011, there is funding of $653,650 (2010 - $71,379) that is held in frust by BCMA
as it had not been allocated by the JBC to a specific program.

9. Capital disclosures:

The Benefit Programs receive their principal source of capital through contributions. The Benefit
Programs define capital fo be net assets. In carrying out its purpose, the Benefit Programs
regularly distribute their capital through their activities and administrative services.

The Benefit Programs are not subject to any other external capital requirements or restrictions.
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FINANCIAL REPORT SUMMARY
LTD Policy Number 58298
From April 1, 2010 to March 31, 2011

Policy Number

Premjums: , _ .
Paid Premium $14,000,000 $0  $14,000,000 . 7 100%
Incurred Claims: o )
Paid Claims 8,179,137 362,354 ‘8,541,491 ° 61%
Disabled lLife Reserve Beginning 30,441,790 2,015,267 32,457,057

Ending 31,439,224 1,620,831 33,060,055,

Change 997,434 (394,4386) 602,998 4%
IBNR Reserve Beginning 2,100,001 0 2,100,001

Ending 2,100,000 0 2,100,000

Change {1 0 Y 0%
TOTAL INCURRED CLA!MSV $9,176,570 {$32,082) $9,144,488" 65%
Expenses & Tax;
Premium Tax 280,000 0 f 280,000
Other Expenses 1,423,545 12,310 1435855
TOTAL EXPENSES & TAX $1,703,545 $12,310 $1,715,855 « 12%
Interest on Reserves & Cash Flow L
Initial IBNR Reserves @ 0.5% 10,500 -0 10,500
DLR (5-Year GIC) 948,425 115,107 1,063,632~
Interest on Cash Flow @ 0.21% .
Premium 16,029 0 16,029
Paid Claims (8,591) {381} (8,972) -
Premium Tax (339) 0 £339) +-
Expenses . (1,495) {(13) (1,508)
TOTAL INTEREST $964,529 $114,713 $1,079,242 ¢ 8%
Plan Year Resullts: )
PLAN YEAR SURPLUS/DEFICIT $4,084,414 $134,485 $4,218,899; . 30%
Premium Tax Adjustment $83,355 $2,745 $86,100.° '
Transfer from CFR $17,500 $0 $17,500 ¢
TOTAL SURPLUS $4,185,269 $137,230  $4,322,499
Transfer to Deposit Fund Account ($4,185,269) ($137,230)  1(54,322:.499) -7
Balance : S0 50 $0

2011/05/26
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STATEMENT OF CLAIMS FLUCTUATION RESERVE
LTD Policy Number 59998 '
From April 1, 2010 to March 31, 2011

Balance as at Aprif 1, 2010 $3,500,000 $0  $3,500,000;
Interest at one year GIC 0.5% $17,500 $0 $17,500 ¢
Transfer to Surplus - ($17,500) $0 - {$17,500)
Balance as at March 31, 2011 . . $3,500,000 $0 $3,500,000 ;
Maximum Required Claims Fluctuation Reserve -

25% of Pald Premium $3,500,000 $0  :$3,500,000 =

2011/05/26
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STATEMENT OF DEPQOSIT FUND
LTD Policy Number 59998
From April 1, 2010 to March 31, 2011

DEPOSIT FUND ACCOUNT 41
Deposit Fund as of April 1, 2010 4,212,672.24  (153,865.87) 74,058,808.37 "
Interest @ 0.22% from April 1, 2010 - October 20, 2010 5,154.46 (188.26) {4,966.20 "
Total : '4,217,826.71  (154,064.14)  4,063,772.57
Total refund to BGMA October 20, 2010 (4,217,826.71)  154,054.14 P(4,063,772.57) !
Balanca as of October 21, 2010 ’ $0 $0 $0 . =
Transfer from Surplus April 1, 2011 $4,185,269 $137,230 34,322,499
DEPOSIT FUND ACCOUNT 1
Transfer from Surplus April 1, 2010 $4,409,333 ($105,314)  :7$4,304,019+
Interest at 1.10% $48,503  ($1.158.45) «$47,344°%
Total as of March 31, 2011 $4,457,836  (3106472) _  $4,351363 - |
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BCMA G

BRITISH COLUMBIA MEDICAL ASSOCIATION

Program Summary

Continuing Medical Education Fund (CME)

This fund is designed to assist physicians with educational expenses A yearly
entitlement is calculated for eligible physicians, which may be deferred for up to three
years. Effective with the 2011/12 benefit, there will no longer be a deferral. All efigible
physicians will be paid their benefit annually, based on confirmation by the Coilege of
Physicians and Surgeons of BC of their revalidation.

Canadian Medical Protective Association (CMPA) Rebate
This rebate provides a partial reimbursement of physicians’ medical liability coverage
fees,

Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan (CPRSP)

This benefit has two components: a basic benefit, which is a dollar for dollar matching
arrangement and is available to all eligible physicians; and, a length of service benefit
which is based on the number of years a physician has practiced in British Columbia.
The benefit's maximum entitlement is calculated annually and may be deferred for up to
three years.

Parental Leave Program (PLP)

This program provides a maximum 17 week benefit for physicians. Physicians receiving
benefits must return fo the practice of medicine in British Columbia for 2 minimum of 17
weeks following their parental leave.

Physiciansg’ Disability Insurance (PDI)
Designed to provide income replacement to physicians who become partially or
completely disabled.
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BC Medical Association e
Ben dministration Agreement

Reporting Requirements

31-Mar-12

Per Agreement CME CMPA CPRSP PLP PDI
Section4.11 N -
a) total amount expended for benefits and the number of physicians for whom an |~~~ T
entitlement was calculated S PR R S S
Benefits ‘ 16,443,223 [ $ 16,062,872 | § 50,376,495 1% 13641646
...Number of Physicians 9,565 9,670 9,961, 7,105

b) total amount of funding received from physicians who are not members of the |

BCMA for administrative fees

1428808 | §

... 219,685

$ 313,580

(";"')'wﬁ:ﬁé"nurri5&?6?&5}hﬁé"éﬁbﬁcétiohé received, the number acceptéd and the -

number refused (PLP & PDI only) o ,

......Claims received - - - LA 206
... Number accepted - - - 262 197

Number refused - - - 12 9

d} the amount of any surplus, including any surpius carried forward from & previous

year 51,901 1630423 | $ 5365936 | $ 2663618 | % 3,883,135

e} the total amount of Administrative Costs charged by the BCMA against the

Benefits Plans, with details as to the amounts charged against each such Plan 338,240 318,080 1 $ 504000 (% 140,000 | $ 360,000
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BC Medical Association
Benefit Programs - Audited FS
March 31, 2012

Fund Balance - April 1, 2011

Revenue
Government funding
Investment income

Expenditures

Benefits

Increase {Decrease) Provision
Management Fees

Sundry Expenses

Excess Rev - Exp

interest on Deposit Fund & CFR
Transfer of funds from SunLife
Transfer of funds to benefit plans

Market value adjustment of investments

Funding Balance - March 31, 2012

PDI Trust

CME CMPA CPRSP PLP funds in BCMA PDI - Sun Life
3,713,400 1,942,945 457,636 1,645,717 653,652 8,673,862
11,826,227 16,000,000 52,370,000 4,900,000 - 14,000,000
272,257 68,430 587,791 - 52194 10,252 792,936
12,098,484 16,068 430 52,957,791 4,852 194 10,252 14,792,936
21,848,223 16,062,872 49,476,495 3,794,283 - 13,641,646
(5,405,000} - 900,000 - - -
338,240 318,080 504,000 140,000 - 360,000
- - - - . 1,289,944
16,781,463 16,380,952 50,880,495 3,934,293 - 15,291,590
(4,682,979) (312,522) 2,077,296 1,017,901 10,252 {498,654)
- - - - - 73,947
- - - - 4,366,020 (4,366,020)
1,210,000 - 3,000,000 - {4,210,000) -
{188,430) - (168,997) - - -
51,991 1,630,423 5,365,935 2,663,618 819,924 3,883,115
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Financial information of

BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Year ended March 31, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of the Joint Benefits Committee

We have audited the accompanying combined financial information of the Benefit Programs, including
the Continuing Medical Education Fund, Canadian Medical Protective Association Dues Rebate
Fund, Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan and Parental Leave Program, which
comprises the combined statement of financial position as at March 31, 2012, the combined
statement of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. This
combined financial information has been prepared by management in accordance with the basis of
accounting described in Note 3 to the combined financial information.

Management's Responsibility for the Combined Financial Information

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial
information in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 3 to the combined financial
information; this includes determining that the basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the combined financial information in the circumstances and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enabie the preparation of combined financial information
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to exprass an opinion on the combined financial information based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we compiy with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial information is free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the combined financial information. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial information, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider infernal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of the combined financial information in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the combined financiatl information.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinfon, the combined financiat information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2012 is

prepared, in al material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 3 to
the combined financial information.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 3 to the combined financial information
which describes the basis of accounting. The combined financial information is prepared to assist the
Benefit Programs o meet the financial reporting requirements of the Joint Benefits Committee. As a
result, the combined financial information may not be suitabie for another purpose. Our report is
intended sofely for the Joint Benefit Committee and should not be used by parties other than the Joint
Benefits Committee.

Chartered Accountants

Date

Burnaby, Canada
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Statement of Financiai Position

March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011

Canadian
Medical Contributory
The Continuing Protective Professional
Medical Association Retirement Parental
Education . Dues Savings ieave
Fund Rebate Fund Plan Program 2012 2011
("CME"} {"CNMPA" ("CPRSP") ("PLP"} Total Total
Assets
Current assefs:
Cash % 512,838 § 2,398,493 $ 12,705,028 § 4309125 § 20,015,485 § 18,100,355
Investments {note 4) 2,856 767 - 3,113,545 - 5,970,312 7,841 737
Contributions receivable (note 5) ~ - 455 00C - 495 000 -
3,369,606 2,398,493 16,313,573 4,399,125 26,480,797 25,842,092
investments (note 4) 1,641,733 - 2,359,146 - ) 4.000,879 8,233,383

3 5011338 § 2,388,483 § 18672719 § 4,399,125 $ 3D4B1,676 $ 34,175445

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8 1,974,191 % 714,976 & 843,364 § 1,723,840 S8 5,256,371 $ 6,248,515

Due to BCMA {note 8) 80,157 53,094 63,420 11,667 218,338 283,871

Deferred revenue - - - - - 311,227
Provision for physicians' unclaimed

entitlements {nofe §) 2,895,000 - 12,400,000 - 15,285,000 19,800,000

4 959 348 768,070 13,306,784 1,735,507 20,769,709 26,644,617

Net assets 51,981 1,630,423 5,365,835 2,663,618 9,711,967 7,530,828

$ 5011339 §% 2,398,493 § 18872719 § 4385125 $ 30481876 $ 34,175,445

See accompanying notes to financial information.

On behalf of the Commitiee:
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Statement of Operations

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011

2012 2011
CME CMPA CPRSP PLP Total Total
Revenue:
Government of the Province of
British Columbia $ 11826227 $ 16000,000 § 52,370,006 $ 4,900000 $ 85006227 $ 77,150,000
Investment income 272,257 68,430 587,791 52,154 880,672 883,755
12,008,484 16,068,430 52,957,791 4,952 194 86,075,899 78,038,755
Expenses!
Contributions fo physicians (notes 6 and 7):
Entittements 16,742,063 16,082,872 54,630,667 3,794,283 91,229,895 85,211,501
Less: lapsed entifiements and
deficiency of actual payments
pver provision {298,840) - (4,254,172) - (4,553,012) (6,734,087)
16,443,223 16,062,872 50,376,495 3,794 283 86,676,883 78,477 414
Administration (note 8) 338,240 318,080 504,000 140,000 1,300,320 1,280,002
16,781,483 16,380,852 50,880,495 3,834,293 87,877,203 79,757 416
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses (4,682,879) (312,522) 2,077,296 1,017,901 (1,900,304) (1,717.661)
Net assets, beginning of year excluding
market value adjusiments of investment
portfolio classified as available-for-sale 3,713,460 1,942,945 457 636 1,645,717 7,759,698 5413586
Transfer from other benefit plans (note 8(c)) 1,210,000 - 3,000,000 - 4 210,000 4 083,773
Cumulative market value adiustments
cf invesiment portfolio classified as
avaitable-for-sale (note 4(b)) (188,430) - (168,997) - (387,427) (228.870)
Net assets, end of year 5 51,091 § 1630423 § 5365935 $ 2683818 $ 9741967 § 7530828
See accompanying notes to financial information.
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2012, with comparative figures for 2011

20z 2011
CME CMPA CPRSP PLP Total Total
Cash provided by (used in}:
Operations:
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
OVer expenses $ (4682579 $ (312522) § 2077206 § 1017901 § (1.900,304) $ (1,717,661
ltems not involving cash;
Loss {gain} on maturity of investments {123,840) - (59,048} - (183,788) 155,853
Change in pravision for physicians'
unclaimed entitiements (5,405,000} - 900,000 - (4,505,000} 5,125,000
Ghange in non-cash operating working capital (2,643 257 174,505 (300,719) 904,563 (1,864,908) 2,475,876
(12,855,076) (138,017) 2,616,629 1,822,464 (8,454 000) 6,039,068
Investments:

Net purchase of investmenis 5,281.5628 - (122,398) - 6,159,130 (608,424}
Financing:

Transfer from other benefit plans 1,210,000 - 3,000,000 - 4,210 000 4 063,773
Increase (decrease) in cash (5,363,548) (138,017) 5,484,231 1,922,464 1,815,130 8,494 417
Cash, beginning of year 5,876,387 2,536,510 7,210,797 2,476,861 18,100,355 8,605,938
Cash, end of year 3 512,830 § 23984083 $ 12705028 § 4300125 § 20015485 § 18100 385
Supplementary information:

Fair value adiustment on investments 3 79645 % - % 48912 % - § 128,557 & 128,829

See accompanying notes to financiat information.
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Information

Year ended March 31, 2012

1. Purpose of the benefit programs:

The Continuing Medical Education Fund (the “CME") was established to provide eligible
physicians with funds to be used for continuing medical education expenses. Commencing 2012,
the CME benefit is paid to eligible physicians whose educational revalidation has been confirmed
by the College of Physicians and Surgeons of BC. ‘

The Canadian Medical Protective Association Dues Rebate Fund (the "CMPA") provides rebates
to physicians for a portion of their malpractice liability dues.

The Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan (the "CPRSP") was established fo assist
physicians to provide for a registered retirement savings plan ("RRSP") for their retirement The
CPRSP will be used to make contributions on behalf of each eligible physician to a physician's
RRSP account.

The Parental Leave Program (the "PLP") was established to provide a maximum 17-week benefit
for mate and female physicians while on parental leave.

The combined financial information excludes the financial information of the Physicians Disability
Insurance Program (note 3).

2. Agreements:

The Government of the Province of British Coiumbia (the "Government”), the Medical Services
Commission of British Columbia (the "MSC”) and the British Columbia Medical Association
{"BCMA") entered into a master agreement known as the Physician Master Agreement {"PMA")
effective November 1, 2007 to March 31, 2012.

A new four year PMA has been negotiated for the period from April 1, 2012 through to March 31,
2016 and has been ratified by the BCMA membership. Under the new PMA, current funding
levels will continue to be provided to the Program.

The Benefits Subsidiary Agreement is one of the Physician Master Subsidiary Agreements under
the PMA and is intended to address those matters of unique interest and applicability to general
practitioners.

The Joint Benefits Committee {"JBC"} is the governing commitiee for the following benefit plans:
+ The Continuing Medical Education Fund (*CME")

* Canadian Medical Protective Association Dues Rebate Fund (‘CMPA™)

s Contributory Professional Retirement Savings Plan (*CPRSP"}

s Parental Leave Program (*PLP")

» Physicians Disability Insurance Program (*PDI™)
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes {o Financial Information (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2012

3. Significant accounting policies:

(a) Basis of presentation:

The financial information has been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles, except that it excludes the financial information of
the Physictans Disability Insurance Program, a Program alsoe under the controi of the JBC.

(b} Revenue recognition:

The Benefit Programs follow the deferral method for accounting for contributions. Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivabte, if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Externally
restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the refated expenses
are recorded, or the restrictions met.

Funding is recognized as revenue once allocated by the JBC. Funding received that has
been previously recoghized as revenue by any Program under the control of the JBC, is
recorded as a direct increase in net assets.

(c} Contributions to physicians:
{H CME:
Contributions to physicians includes reimbursement of costs incurred by physicians for
various educational courses, meetings and other education enhancement items,

These contributions are accrued by the CME for thbse claims incurred by March 31 and
received and approved by the CME.

For the 2009 and 2010 benefit years, physicians are permitted to submit claims for cost
reimbursement after the year end of the CME for costs incurred prior to the year end.
Physicians have up to a maximum of three years to claim entittements. Entitlements not
claimed in those years are forfeited. The entitlements expire as follows:

Entitlement year 2009 benefit entitferment expires March 31, 2012
Entitlement year 2010 benefit entitlement expires March 31, 2013

For the 2011 benefit year, physicians are entitled to receive the benefit provided that they
have self-declared their compliance with a recognized licensure revalidation process to
the College of Physicians and Surgeons of British Columbia. Physicians have one year to
claim the entitfement. Entitlements not claimed within the benefit year are forfeited.
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Informaticn (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2012

3. Significant accounting policies {continued):

{c} Contributions to physicians (continued):

(i)

(iif)

CMPA:

Contributions to physicians represent reimbursement of a portion of physicians' Canadian
Medical Protective Association fees, the amount of which is determined by the Benefits
Subsidiary Agreement. The annual funding received for the CMPA is the amount required
to reimburse eligible physicians for 100% of their Canadian Medical Protective Association
membership dues above 1985 dues rates to an annual maximum of $22 000,000,

CPRSP:

Contributions to physicians represent contributions on behalf of each eligible physician to a
physician's registered refirement savings plan account. The contribution is determined
using a formula established by the agreement. Physician entitlements are calcutated once
each calendar year and paid not later than March 1.

Physicians have up to a maximum of three years to claim entitlements. Entitlements not
claimed in those years are forfeited. The entittements expire as follows:

Entitlement year 2008 benefit entittement expired March 31, 2012

Entitlement year 2010 benefit entitiement expires March 31, 2013

Entittement year 2011 benefit entitfement expires March 31, 2014
{iv) PLP:

Contributions to physicians represent benefits paid to physicians when on parental ieave,
based on the amount the physician has billed to the Medical Services Plan, to a
maximum of 17 weeks and $1,000 per week.

(d) Provisions for unclaimed entitiements (CME and CPRSP);

The provisions for physicians for unclaimed entitlements represent an estimate of future actual
total entitlement payments available to physicians. The provisions are net of entitlements that
are anticipated to lapse based upon the CME and CPRSP claims setttement history.
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Information (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2012

3. Significant accounting policies {continued):

(e} Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading,
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or other financial
Habilities. Al financial instruments are included on the statement of financial position and are
initially measured at fair market value. Subsequent measurement and recognition of changes in
fair value of financial instruments depend on their initial classification.

The Benefit Programs have elected to continue to apply the financial instruments disclosure
and presentation standards in accordance with the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA"y Handbook Section 3861, as permitted for not-for-profit organizations.

Financial assets and liabilities ciassified as held for trading are measured at fair value at each
reporting period with changes in fair value included in the statement of operations. Financial
assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value, with unrealized changes in
fair value recorded directly in net assets.

Loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method at each reporting period with changes in amortized cost included in the
statement of operations.

The Benefit Programs’ financial instruments include cash, investments, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to BCMA. The Benefit Programs have
classified cash as held for trading, investments as availabte-for-sale, accounts receivable as
ioans and receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilitties and due to BCMA as other
financial liabilities.

() Use of estimates:
The preparation of the financial information requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial information and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring the
use of management estimates relate to the valuation of accounts receivable, the calculation
of the provisions for physicians’ unclaimed entitlements and provision for contingencies.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes o Financial Information (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2012

3. Significant accounting poticies {(continued):

(g) Changes in accounting framework:

in December 2010 the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants ("CICA") in conjunction
with the Accounting Standards Board ("AcSB") issued Part [l — Accounting Standards for Not-
for-Profit Organizations ("Part HlI") of the CICA Handbook. Part {li is effective for fiscal years
commencing on or after January 1, 2012 and provides Canadian private sector not-for-profit
organizations with a new financial reporting framework. The Benefit Programs have the option
to apply International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") or the newly approved
accounting standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations.

The Benefit Programs are evaluating the impact of adopting these new accounting standards.

4, Investments:

(a) Inhvestments are comprised of bonds as follows:

CME CPRSP 2012 2011
Effective yield 5.3% 4.4%
l.ess than 1 year $ 2886767 § 3113845 3§ 5,970,312 & 7,841,737
1-2vyears 1,641,733 2,359,148 4,000,879 8,233,353
Total § 4498500 5 5472691 § 9,871,191 § 16,075,090

(p) The cumulative market value adiustments of investments recorded directly against net assets

is summarized as follows:

CME CPRSP 2012 2011
Balance, beginning of year $ {108,785) % {120,085) % (228,870} % (102,041)
Previously unrealized loss transferred
to net income gduring the year 19,148 45,219 64,367 54,261
Net change to unreslized loss (98,793) (94,131) (192,924) {181,090)
Balance, end of year 3 (188,430) 3 (168,997) 3 {357.427) § (228,870)
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial iInformation {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2012

5. Contributions receivable:

In 2012, $495,000 (2011 — nil) was outstanding at year end related to contributions to be received
from the MSC. These amounts were received subsequent to year end.

6. Provision for unciaimed entitlements:

{a} Provision for unclaimed entittements {CME}:

The following is the provision for unclaimed entitiements related to the CME benefits:

Entitlement year 2011 2010 2009 2008 Total
- Provision, March 31, 2010 % - 8 - § 5776309 $ 2568691 % 8,375,000

Entitlements - 14,052.750 - - 14,052,750
Payments (3,852,897) {3,457,709) (2.841,662) (10,152,268)
Entitlemants anticipated fo lapse and

deficiency of actual payments

over provision - (4,218,453) 242 971 (3,975,482)
Provision, March 31, 2011 - 5,981,400 2,318,600 - 8,300,600
Entittements 18,742,063 16,742,063
Payments {16,543,150) {(3,087,713) {2,217,360) - {21,848,223)
Entitlements anticipaied to lapse and

excess (deficiency) of actual

payments over provision (198,913) 1,313 (101,240} - (298,840}
Provision, March 31, 2012 $ - % 2895000 & - % - & 28095000

No provision has been recorded for the 2011 benefits year since physicians forfeit all
entitlements not claimed within the year.

(b)

Provision for unclaimed entitlements (CPRSP):

The provision for unclaimed entitlements for CPRSP consists of the basic retirement saving
plan (‘RSP") benefils provided to physicians and effective for the 2010/11 fiscal year, the
RSP contribution based on the length of service provided by a physician in British Columbia.
The fallowing is the provision for unclaimed entitlements related to these benefits:
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BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Information {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2012

6. Provision for unclaimed entitlements (continued):

{b) Provision for unciaimed entitlements {CPRSP) (continued):

Entitlement Year 2011 2010 2009 2008 Total
Provision, March 31, 2010 $ - 0% 5 5514018 § 785932 $ 6,300,000
Enditlements 54,149,949 - 54,149,949
Paymanis {41,518,210) (3.058,002)  {1.615132)  (45,191,344)
Entilements anticipated to lapse
and excess (deficiancy) of
actual payments over provision - (3,587,755) - 828,150 {2,758,605)
Pravision, March 31, 2011 - 9,043,084 2,456,016 - 11,500,000
Entitlements 54,630,667 - - - 54 630,667
Payments {42,340,792) (5,388,177} {1,746,528) - {49 476,495)
Entitements anticipated to lapse
and deficiency of actual
payments over provision (3,544,682) (709,490) (4,254,172}
Provision, March 31, 2012 $ 8,745,183 & 38654807 & - % § 12,400,000
7. Contributions to physicians (CMPA and PLP):
The contributions to physicians for the CMPA and PLP are as follows:
2012 2011
CMPA $ 16,062,872 $ 13,847,236
PLP 3,794,293 3,161,566
DRAFT - August 22, 2012 10

Page 126
HTH-2013-00126




BENEFIT PROGRAMS

Notes to Financial Information (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2012

8. Related party transactions:

10.

(@)

(b)

(©

The Government and MSC have entered into a contract with BCMA for the term of the PMA for
BCMA to administer the Benefit Programs, the costs of which are to be recovered from the annual
funding made available to the Benefits Programs.

During the year, the Benefit Programs paid the following for BCMA's services:

CME CMPA CPRSP FLP 2012 2011

Administration expense § 338,240 3% 318,086 § 504,000 $ 140,000 § 1,300,320 § 1,280,002

As at March 31, 2012, the following remained payable to BCMA relating to these administrative
fees:

CME CMPA CPRSP PLP 2012 2011

Administration fees payable § 28167 5 26507 § 42,000 § 11667 § 108,341 § 108,360

The contract also provides that BCMA may charge physicians who are not members of BCMA an
administration fee when such non-members apply for the benefits available to them under the
Benefit Programs.

As at March 31, 2012, the following remained payable to BCMA relating to non-member fees:

CME CMPA CPRSP PLP 2012 2011

Nen-member fees payable $ 51,950 $ 26587 $ 21420 3 - $ 109997 $§ 175,511

During the year, the Benefit Programs received $4,210,000 from Physician’s Disability
Insurance Program (2011 - $4,063,773).

Unallocated funding:

As at March 31, 2012, there is funding of $819,624 (2011 - $653,650) that is held in trust by
BCMA as it had not been allocated by the JBC to a specific program.

Capital disc]osﬁres:

The Benefit Programs receive their principal source of capitat through contributions. The Benefit
Programs define capital to he net assets. In carrying out its purpose, the Benefit Programs
regularly distribute their capital through their activities and administrative services.
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FINANCIAL REPORT SUMMARY
LTD Policy Number 59898
From Aprit 1, 2611 to March 31, 2012

Premiums:
Paid Premiums

incurred Claims:

Pzid Claims

Disabled Life Reserve Beginning
Ending
Change

IBNR Reserve Beginning
Ending
Change

TOTAL INCURRED CLAIMS

Expenses & Tax;
Premium Tax
Other Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES & TAX

Interest on Reserves & Cash Flows:
Interest on Initial IBNR Reserves @ 1.2%
Interest on DLR (5-Year GIC)

Interest on Cash Flows @ 0.4%
interest on Premiums

Interest on Paid Claims

Interest on Premiurm Tax

Interest on Expenses

TOTAL INTEREST

Plan Year Results:

Plan Year Surplus / Deficit

Premium Tax Adjustment
-Balance

Transfer from CFR to Offset Deficit

Balance '

$14,000,000 $0  $14,000,000 100%
$9,121,517 $248,075 39,369,583 67%
$31,438,224 51,620,831 333,080,055
535,860,827 $1,471,481  $37,332,108
34,421,403 ($149,350)  $4,272,053 31%
$2,160,000 $0 32,100,000
$2,100,000 S0 32,100,000
80 $0 $0 . 0%
$13,542,920 $98,726 $13,641,648 97%
$280,000 30 $280,000
o 51,352,280 $7.691 $1,358,971
$1,632,280 $7,691 $1,639,971 12%
$25,200 $0 $25,200
$718,730 $39,830 $758,560
$30,742 30 $30,742
{$17,718) ($482) ($18,200)
(3646} 30 (3648}
($2,705) ($15) {$2,720)
$753,603 $39,333 $792,936 6%
{3421,587) {$67,084) ($488,681) -3%
(58.604) ($1,389) (38,873}
{$430,201) (558,453) {$498,654)
$430,201 $68,453 $498,654
$0 $0 $0
Page_%é &/82012
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STATEMENT OF CLAIMS FLUCTUATION RESERVE
LTD Policy Number 59598
From April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012

Balance as at April 1, 2011
Interest at one year GIC 1.20%

Total

Transfer to offset Deficit

Balance as at March 31, 2012

Transfer from Deposit Fund April 1, 2012

Bzlance as of April 1, 2012

Maximum Required Claims Fluctuation Reserve

25% of Paid Premium

$3,500,000 $0  $3,500,000
$42,000 $0 $42,000
$3,542,000 $3,542,000

($498,654) $0  (3498,654)
$3,043,346 S0 $3,043,346
$456,654 $456,554
$3,500,000 $3,500,000
$3,500,000 $0 _ $3,500,000

-4 -
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STATEMENT OF DEPOSIT FUND
LTD Policy Number 55998
From April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012

DEPOSIT FUND ACCOUNT 1

Transfer from Surplus April 1, 2010
Interest at 1.10%

Total as of March 31, 2011

Interest from April 1, 2011 - July 22, 2011
Total as of July 22, 2011

Refund fo BCMA July 22, 2011

Balance as of July 23, 2011

DEPOSIT FUND ACCOUNT 11

Transfer from Surplus April 1, 2011
Interest af 0.40%

Total as of March 31, 2012
Transfer to fully fund CFR April 1, 2012

Balance as of April 1, 2012

$4.409.333  (3105,314) 54,304,019
$48,503 ($1,158) $47,344
34457836 (3106.472)  $4,351,363
$15,016 (5359) $14,657
34,470,850 (S106.831)  $4.366,020
(54,472,852)  $106,831  ($4,366,020)
50 50 50
54185269  $137,230  $4,322,499
316,741 $549 $17,290
$4002,010 8137779  $4339.789
($456,654) ($456,654)
$3,745,356 $137,779 53,883,135
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